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The Energy to Behave
Ecologically
The Company’s motto—“Clean Energy
Warms You”—which today is part of the
logo, is far from being merely an impressive
slogan. ŠKO‑ENERGO understands
environmental protection as a common
task in which every employee must play
a role according to his or her responsibility,
knowledge and abilities.
We have found abundant “energy” to
behave ecologically in all circumstances
and in all directions. We protect air quality,
return water to purity, recycle waste
materials and support ecological projects
in the region. We are continually moving
forward on this path.

ŠKO‑ENERGO:
“Clean Energy Warms You”
Everyone who knows the phrase
“Clean Energy Warms You”, which
today is part of the Company’s logo,
perhaps has doubts sometimes. After
all, the beating heart of ŠKO‑ENERGO
is a heating plant burning solid fuel.
How can a company operating a heating
plant effectively protect the environment
and conduct itself in an ecological manner?
However, today and every day the
Company proves in numerous ways that,
in the case of the motto “Clean Energy
Warms You”, this is not an appealing yet
empty advertising slogan. Nor do we have
the colour green in the Company’s logo
for nothing.
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The Energy to Behave
Ecologically
We have found sufficient “energy” to behave in a
maximally ecological manner to the extent possible
in the Company’s field of business, whether this
involves the continual reduction of the amount of
CO² in the atmosphere (for several years already
we have been operating below the stipulated limits)
particularly through the combustion of alternative
fuels, wastewater treatment, recycling of waste
materials and transfer of the principles of ecological
conduct as well as our own findings and experience
within the framework of supporting the region.
In the past fourteen years ŠKO‑ENERGO has significantly contributed to improving the city and
region of Mladá Boleslav through the construction of an environmentally friendly heating plant
and water-management facilities which serve for treating wastewater from the ŠKODA AUTO
factory.
We feel that it is our responsibility to protect the environment, we don’t avoid it and we are
preparing for all of the challenges which await us especially in the coming years. Primarily, we are
planning to generate a third of electricity from renewable sources in 2015.
We did not set out on the path of ecological conduct only in recent years when accession to the
European Union brought forth stricter environmental-protection standards. For that matter, the
further tightening of standards is literally a done deal.
We know this path well and are familiar with all of the obstacles and pitfalls. With complete
awareness and with a view to the future, we set out on this path fifteen years ago, when the
Company was founded and its mission defined. The heating plant was built to fulfil the European
Union’s strictest environmental criteria.
A completely new heating plant was constructed in 2000 and since that time ŠKO ENERGO has
been ecologically and reliably supplying all necessary energy not only to ŠKODA AUTO, but also
to the city of Mladá Boleslav. Provision of energy is being extended to the historical and industrial
areas of Mladá Bolseslav and to the expanding operations of ŠKODA AUTO. The Company has
taken over operations beyond the framework of its original focus.
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With respect to all of the outputs of the Company’s operations, the ecological standpoint is, and
will continue to be, at the forefront of our interest.

Principles of Ecological Conduct at ŠKO‑ENERGO
ŠKO‑ENERGO understands environmental protection as a common task in which every employee
must play a role according to his or her responsibility, knowledge and abilities.
A full range of training for the Company’s employees focusing on environmental protection also
took place in 2011.

Within the Company’s environmental policy, ŠKO‑ENERGO
has committed to the following endeavours:

1
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To carry out environmental protection on the basis of its own sense of
responsibility and its own initiative.
To reduce the burden on the environment caused by the Company through the
use of new processes and ecological conduct.
In the construction and operation of all facilities, to use modern technology and
standards if it is technically feasible and economically acceptable to do so.
To reduce the amount of emissions released into the air and to economically use
natural resources.
To perform all ordinary planned activities according to environmental regulations
and other environmental-protection requirements.
To ensure occupational safety and the safety of ŠKO‑ENERGO facilities at the
achieved high level and to continually strive for improvement.
Prior to implementing new processes and installation of new equipment, to
evaluate their impact on the environment in order to limit environmental risks
and safety hazards.

7
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Through training and provision of information, to promote the responsibility of
the Company’s employees toward the environment.

9

To conduct an open dialogue with interest groups and to provide them with
information serving for comprehension of the adopted objectives and the results
of environmental programmes.

To regularly verify compliance with the policy and objectives in the area of
environmental protection and the effectiveness of the Company’s environmental
management.
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Selected Indicators

Selected Indicators
values in czk ’000

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2,704,377

2,425,920

2,285,375

2,396,215

1,940,984

2,479,517

2,227,799

2,089,501

2,025,292

1,854,260

2,699,893

2,418,474

2,273,260

2,384,529

1,932,097

32,114

29,246

24,216

19,644

15,867

4,484

7,446

12,115

11,686

8,887

(4,204)

(2,552)

(7,257)

(8,845)

(4,843)

280

4,894

4,858

2,841

4,044

2,170

2,170

2,190

2,211

2,279

Long-term assets

287,533

283,453

270,636

252,925

206,634

Current assets

416,752

353,294

480,615

431,622

304,851

58,754

58,037

57,338

56,638

55,978

Loan liabilities

614,515

490,051

649,005

665,137

392,329

Total assets

731,430

657,105

770,349

737,485

526,591

Sales of heat

454

506

446

457

471

Sales of electricity

567

548

532

534

538

Operating revenues
of which sales of goods, sale of
the Company’s own products
and services
Operating expenses
of which depreciations of
tangible and intangible fixed
assets
Operating result
Financial result
Profit before tax
Profit after tax

Equity

values in mwh ’000
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Revenues from sales of the Company’s own
products and services

Price of heat—Mladá Boleslav
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Foreword by the Statutory
Representatives
Dear Friends,
We would like to summarise the most important developments that took place
in 2011 which were of special significance to the Company as a result of the
approval of projects intended to further streamline production and reduce CO²
emissions in line with cost reductions.
The Annual Report you are now reading is not a mere recapitulation of the year
2011; it is also a message, as it were, which we would like to pass on. It is
subtitled “The Energy to Behave Ecologically”. Its intended meaning is that ecology
is the most urgent priority for our Company, to which many other issues can be
subordinated. It is not by chance that the motto “Clean Energy Warms You” is part
of our corporate logo.

The year 2011 again confirmed the Company’s stability based on long-term contracts with customers and
suppliers of raw materials and energy. The economic and financial crisis did not affect the Company materially
thanks to growing purchases of the main customer, ŠKODA AUTO, and steady purchases of heat by the
municipality of Mladá Boleslav. This is the result of the development of ŠKODA AUTO and the declared
pro-growth strategy, which significantly affects the standard of living in Mladá Boleslav.
Operation of all the production and distribution facilities was smooth in 2011. Deliveries of all energy were
right on schedule and safely met the demands of ŠKODA AUTO and the other purchasers in compliance with
the relevant contracts. With regard to ecology, all the requirements concerning the discharge of wastewater
and emissions resulting from the generation of heat and electricity were satisfied.
Important customers of ŠKO-ENERGO are the residents of Mladá Boleslav, who purchase one-third of
the heat generated by the Company. These purchases are very important for the efficiency and thus
the economy of the heating plant. The Company’s long-term goal is therefore to maintain a stable and
acceptable price level below that of the costs of other media, particularly gas.
Some very positive facts stemmed from surveys conducted in 2011 for ŠKO-ENERGO and the distributor
CENTROTHERM. A full 94% of customers in Mladá Boleslav perceive ŠKO-ENERGO very positively, 96%
are very loyal and resolved to buy from the Company remote heat in the long term. No less gratifying is the
finding that 99% of customers are perfectly satisfied with their supply of heat.
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The Company has also achieved its financial goals and planned cost reduction, thereby partly alleviating the
adverse impact of increased charges for renewable sources of energy and the introduction of the gift tax on
permits for carbon dioxide emissions.
The year 2011 was characterised by the increased frequency of training courses for the Company’s
employees in various fields, from computing to management skills. The training plans were implemented
thanks to aid from the Operational Programme Human Resources and Employment.
ŠKO-ENERGO must cope with growing demands from the European Union and the related Czech legislation
for ecological production of energy, which is being enforced with economic instruments. For this reason the
Company’s strategy is primarily focused on cutting CO² emissions and limiting the economic repercussions
of purchases of CO² emission allowances so that the situation minimally affects the prices of energy for
ŠKODA AUTO and the prices of heat for the residents of Mladá Boleslav.
ŠKO-ENERGO therefore concentrated on projects aimed at reducing CO² emissions, which save energy
at the same time. The Company initiated projects worth CZK 340 million which will enable increased
co-combustion of biomass, expansion of hot-water networks, increased efficiency of turbines, and cogeneration of electricity and heat at the Vrchlabí plant.
Apart from cost savings, low emissions of greenhouse gases and harmful substances is also part of the
Company’s social responsibility policy. Being conscious of its social responsibility, ŠKO-ENERGO intends
to continue to support regional activities promoting ecological behaviour and help with the upbringing and
meaningful use of the leisure time of children and youths.
In conclusion, it should be said that all the employees contributed to the Company’s good results and they
deserve our thanks for their responsible and outstanding work.

2 April 2012

Miroslav Ždánský
Statutory Representative

Vladimír Handlík
Statutory Representative
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Company Profile
Basic Information
ŠKO‑ENERGO is an operating company established in 1995 at the same time
as the company ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN. ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN owns facilities, primarily
a thermal power station, which is leased to ŠKO‑ENERGO.
ŠKO‑ENERGO ensures supplies of energy and a broad range of services for the
company ŠKODA AUTO.

In addition to being a provider of services for ŠKODA AUTO, the Company is also a supplier of heat for the
city of Mladá Boleslav. Via the municipal distribution company CENTROTHERM, heat is supplied to 12,000
households and more than 200 business entities and institutions in the city.
The impetus for establishing ŠKO‑ENERGO was a decision on the part of ŠKODA AUTO to spin off its energy
business and provision of energy supplies with the assistance of a consortium comprising two important
German energy companies, RWE AG and OBAG AG (which in 2002 merged with the holding company E.ON).
VW Kraftwerk and the regional power company Středočeská energetická a. s. (whose shares were transferred
to ČEZ, a. s. in 2007) also became partners. In 2010, RWE Power AG sold its shares to ŠKODA AUTO and
VW Kraftwerk GmbH.

Shareholders
ŠKODA AUTO a. s.
ŠKODA AUTO is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Volkswagen AG. It occupies an exceptional position in the
Czech economy and is the most important Czech exporter. The company has a tradition dating back more
than a century. Its path to today’s prosperity began in 1895 with the manufacturing of bicycles and, later,
motorcycles. The company’s first car rolled out of the factory gates in 1905.
E.ON Czech Holding AG
The energy company operating under the brand E.ON supplies electricity, natural gas and related services to
more than 25 million customers.
Since the very beginning of liberalisation, the E.ON group has been active in the countries of Central
and Eastern Europe, where it uses its extensive experience with the privatisation of energy companies
throughout Europe. In addition to electricity, E.ON has significant shares in companies trading in gas.
E.ON is a traditional partner of the Czech energy sector. The company operates primarily in South Moravia
and South Bohemia.
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Volkswagen Kraftwerk GmbH
VW Kraftwerk GmbH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Volkswagen AG. The company provides services not
only to the Volkswagen Group, but also to cities, industry and companies in the areas of energy trading and
supply, power-plant construction planning and facility management. The company’s main task is supplying
the internationally operating Volkswagen Group with electricity, heat, cooling, natural gas, compressed air
and water.
ČEZ, a. s.
The main subject of the operations of ČEZ, a. s. is production and sale of electricity and related support for
the electricity supply system. At the same time, the company is engaged in production, distribution and sale
of heat.
ČEZ Group is the largest producer of electricity and heat in the Czech Republic, an operator of distribution
systems in most areas of the country, and the strongest entity on the wholesale and retail electricity
markets.

Shareholders as at 31 December 2011

VW Kraftwerk GmbH

22.5%

CEZ, a.s., Praha
44.5%

ŠKODA
AUTOAG,
a. s.,
Mladá Boleslav
E.ON Czech
Holding
Mnichov,
Nmecko
E.ON Czech Holding AG, Munich, Germany

Škoda Auto a.s., Mladá Boleslav
ČEZ, a. s., Prague

12%

VW Kraftwerk GmbH, Wolfsburg, Germany

21%
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Main Processes
The Company’s facilities and equipment rank among the most reliable and
environmentally friendly in Europe. The Company is unequivocally aware of its
responsibility to duly maintain and utilise these facilities in the maximum extent.
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Facilities and technologies to ensure
their implementation
ŠKO‑ENERGO completely ensures the provision of electricity, heat, industrial,
potable and cooling water, compressed air and natural gas to ŠKODA AUTO. The
Company conducts treatment and drainage of wastewater and surface water from
the entire ŠKODA AUTO complex and supplies heat to the city of Mladá Boleslav.

Overview of the Company’s activities
We supply heat to the carmaker ŠKODA AUTO, our main partner
The Company’s heart beats in the heating plant, which is among the most environmentally friendly in Europe.
Thanks to the flawless and systematic maintenance of its equipment including the emissions-measurement
control systems, which over the course of many years have not incurred any serious defects, the burden on
the environment is minimised. The heating plant was built with regard to the strict environmental regulations
of the European Union. It continues to comply with these regulations and will withstand stricter norms which
will come into effect in the coming years.
Chairman of the Company’s Supervisory Board Michael Oeljeklaus, who is also the member of the Board of
Directors of ŠKODA AUTO for the area of production and logistics, emphasises the importance of the plan
to generate a third of electricity from renewable sources in 2015: “So that we can assess the environmental
impact of a particular vehicle, it is necessary to take its whole lifecycle into consideration. In this regard,
ecological manufacturing has extraordinary significance. “We achieved substantial improvement with the
construction of the heating plant in 2000. In the coming years, ŠKO‑ENERGO will take an enormous step
forward and reduce CO² emissions by a full 25 percent by 2015. This is a central undertaking within our
policy of permanent sustainable development and it illustrates how ŠKODA AUTO is striving to protect the
environment in a goal-oriented manner.”
The heat plant’s main generating units are two K80 and K90 high-performance fluid boilers with steam
output of 2×140 t/hour, which currently burn brown coal from the Bílina mines in North Bohemia. Within
the framework of reducing atmospheric CO², biomass in the form of pellets is also being used as fuel. The
facilities include two extraction condensation turbines from Siemens.
In the event of a breakdown of the fluid boilers, reserve capacity is ensured by a K70 steam boiler with
output of 60 t/hour whose basic fuel is natural gas. Three hot-water boilers are used to cover peak demand.
The fluid boilers form the basis for economical generation of heat and electricity.
Gas boilers generate heat for the adjacent ŠKODA AUTO factory in Česana and the Vrchlabí factory is
supplied in the same manner. Cooling water is supplied to the heating plant from the cooling system with a
cooling tower and fan-cooling system.
We provide heat to the city of Mladá Boleslav—we supply 12,000 households
In addition to 12,000 homes in Mladá Boleslav, more than 200 business entities and institutions use heat
supplied via the CENTROTHERM distribution network. The Company continually monitors satisfaction with
heat supplies. It is apparent that the satisfaction of customers among the residents of Mladá Boleslav and
businesses in the region is increasing.

13

14

ŠKO‑ENERGO

Annual Report 2011

Company executive Miroslav Žďánský comments on the third wave of marketing research focused on
gauging customers’ experience, which was conducted by Datamar International s. r. o. in June 2011:
“Customers’ view of our Company and what we do is of key importance. In the case of households, a total
of 170 customers were surveyed and a sample of thirty customers was examined among firms.” Companies
were selected from a database and households were randomly selected from the ranks of users. Lenka
Mlynářová, director of Datamar International s. r. o., summarises the results: “The results are very similar
for both target groups. The company decidedly strengthened its position on the market—all surveyed
parties know who the producer of heat is in Mladá Boleslav. Customers reported an above-average level
of satisfaction with heat supplies and there were almost no dissatisfied customers.” It is apparent from
the surveys that customers view remote heating as a convenient, clean and ecological form of heating.
According to customers, there is an absolute minimum of problems that must be resolved. The level of
satisfaction with complaint resolution increased by 14% among firms and remains stable among households
in the long term. Company executive Miroslav Žďánský emphasises the most important information ensuing
from the research: “A total of 86% of Mladá Boleslav residents would recommend ŠKO‑ENERGO to their
friends and family as a supplier. On the Czech market, this is an outstanding result which confirms the
long-term high standard of services.” The price of heat is important for customers. From the survey it is
apparent that satisfaction with the price/performance ratio is on a stable level, which is again unusual on the
Czech market. The incessant rise of electricity and natural-gas prices recently has brought about a decline in
satisfaction with the prices of these commodities. Within the external distribution points, the plan for the
future calls for laying pipes to new customers and reinforcing certain critical sections of pipelines so that it
will be possibly to transfer the required output via these pipes.
We supply electricity—we have a backup plan
A 110 kV distribution plant serves for connecting ŠKO‑ENERGO to the public grid. This distribution plant is
reinforced with separate mains from the system of ČEZ, a. s. because we consider the supplying of electricity
to ŠKODA AUTO to be of key importance. The ŠKO‑ENERGO heating plant is connected to the distribution
plant at the level of 110 kV.
A total of forty-four 22/0.4 kV distribution points on a 22 kV cable system supplies all production facilities of
ŠKODA AUTO and some operations of ŠKO‑ENERGO. A hot-water network covering the entire area of the
factory serves for distribution of heat.
We supply compressed air—a speciality for robots
ŠKODA AUTO uses compressed air primarily in the operations of its welding shop, paint shop and in
assembly. Production of compressed air is ensured by two compressor stations with turbo-compressors with
output of 32,000 Nm³/hour, 4×16,000 Nm³/hour and 10,000 Nm³/hour. Screw compressors that produce
compressed air at 1.2 MPa are used for special workstations, particularly for robots.
We supply operational water—every drop travels six kilometres
Two million cubic metres of operational water per year travels via gravity feed from the Bradlec operational
water source on the Jizera River to the operation facilities of ŠKODA AUTO and the ŠKO‑ENERGO heating
plant. Every drop thus travels six kilometres before it reaches the plant and then undergoes purification and
subsequent filtration.
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We supply cooling water—vehicle manufacturing would be impossible without it
Demineralised water is produced by means of chemical treatment of water, which is collected in storage
tanks and pumped to the heating plant and paint shop. For the needs of the production operations of
ŠKODA AUTO, especially the welding shop and paint shop, cooling water in the Z24 cooling-water station is
sufficient. Though the E14A and E14B cooling-water stations have significantly lower parameters, they are
fully sufficient for the needs of cooling the robots.
We treat wastewater from the body paint shop—we take away unwanted metals from it
The Z17A neutralisation station treats wastewater from the body paint shop by means of ferrous-salts
coagulation and alkaline metal agglutination (for more information, see page 36).
We treat oily wastewater and emulsions—we deal with them
Such contaminated wastewater derives from the mechanical processing of metals. The Z25 station with
vacuum-based evaporation and multistage mechanical pre-treatment is used for treating wastewater from
mechanical metal processing (for more information, see page 36).
We purify water from the rainwater drainage system of the new part of the ŠKODA AUTO complex—we
return water to life
The Z29 station has two reservoirs with a total volume of 19,000 m³ in which biological purification of
discharged water is achieved through intensive airing. An independent inspection conducted by biologists
confirmed that this purified water is absolutely sufficient for animals and vegetation.
Distribution, measurement and invoicing—we take care of the whole network
The company operates and maintains all networks serving for the distribution of energy at the ŠKODA AUTO
complex. The gas-distribution system includes an E13 regulation station, which regulates gas from the
external DN300, 4.0 MPa high-pressure distribution system at the required operating values.

Schematic of main process
Conclusion of contracts on the sale of energy and services

Purchasing of strategic commodities (coal, gas, biomass, electricity)

Fuel, raw-materials and energy logistics

Production
of electricity
and heat

Production
of compressed air

Production of
industrial water,
cooling-water and
DEMI-water

Distribution, metering and billing

Waste-water
treatment
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Employees—A Key Source
of the Company’s Success
One of the most basic prerequisites for the further development of ŠKO‑ENERGO
is its employees, who are an extremely important source of the Company’s success.
The basis of the Company’s human-resources work is not only to acquire capable
and skilled workers, but also to maintain, motivate and care for their professional
and occupational growth.

Development of the structure and size of the workforce in 2011
In 2011 the company employed 254 workers, of which 193 were labourers, 57 technical-economic
employees and four members of management. The proportion of women in the total number of employees
amounted to 10%. The average age of all employees in 2011 was 46.6 years.

Age structure of the workforce

13.2%

Workforce by attained education level

nad 60 let

14.0%

14.8%

13.0%

1.6%

vysokoškolské v

od 51 do 60 let

úplné stední od

od 41 do 50 let

odborná škola /

od 31 do 40 let

základní vzdlán

28.0%

29.6%

od 18 do 30 let

57.4%

28.4%

18 to 30
31 to 40
41 to 50
51 to 60
over 60

basic education
vocational school / skilled labourer
 secondary vocational training / GEC-level
vocational training / GEC-level skilled labourer
university

ŠKO‑ENERGO

Annual Report 2011

Development and training of employees
Training involves all groups of employees.
→→The requirements for training technical-economic employees are determined during regular assessment
interviews.
→→Employees who perform, within their work duties, such activities for which periodic review is legislatively
mandated, undergo periodic training required by law.
Other areas of employee development are enhancement of professional knowledge and soft skills, IT skills
and language skills. The Company regularly reviews training requirements and, according to the results of
internal surveys, operatively organises training.

The year 2011 characterised by the “Training is an Opportunity” project
The most important event in the area of employee training in 2011 was the “Training is an Opportunity”
project, for which financial aid totalling more than CZK 3 million was obtained from the Operational
Programme Human Resources and Employment. The project started in February 2011 and ended in
January 2012.
“We wanted to support the education of employees. This project was focused on enhancing current skills
through both the introduction of new areas of training and gaining new knowledge and awareness,”
explained Pavlína Fraňková of the personnel department at ŠKO‑ENERGO.
All seminars and training took place on the Company’s premises, where a new training centre intended
for educating employees was built in 2010 with financial assistance from EU funds. Part of the financial
resources for the “Training is an Opportunity” project in 2011 was used for equipping the training centre with
computer technology. Fifteen notebooks are newly available.
The “Training is an Opportunity” project offered employees courses in various areas. This primarily involved
professional courses, computer skills, foreign-language instruction, specialised courses and seminars as
well as soft skills. “We successfully implemented a cycle of soft-skills trainings for the group of foremen
and coordinators, future foremen and their deputies and future management. Participants familiarised
themselves with topics in the areas of people management, communication, team cooperation, conflict
resolution, personable styles of management, employee evaluation and so on. At the same time, there
were individual seminars on the topics of negotiation, project management, and presentation skills,”
Pavlína Fraňková added.
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Internal communication
Three means of keeping the Company’s employees informed:
→→corporate intranet (launched in 2010)
→→regularly scheduled meetings
→→company newsletter

Involvement of employees in management
The company welcomes the initiative of employees and their ideas in the area of improvement proposals.
Employees can submit their proposals for simplifying, accelerating and improving conditions within the
Company through the “Sbírejte Wattíky” (“Collect Watts”) programme.

Wage policy, cooperation with unions
The remuneration of employees is governed by a collective bargaining agreement. Employees have a range
of benefits and working conditions guaranteed to them by the collective bargaining agreement beyond the
legal requirements.
In collective bargaining, the Company’s employees are represented by a labour union which is part of the
labour union OS KOVO ŠKODA AUTO.
The company proceeds in relation to unions in accordance with the relevant legal regulation and in
accordance with the personnel policy. The result of concurrence between the Company and unions is the
conclusion of a collective bargaining agreement.

Social policy
The Company has long supported cultural, educational, health, sports and recreational activities of its
employees and contributes to pension insurance.
Within its social policy, the Company provides loans for employee housing, transport to the workplaces and
meal allowances, and supports employees and their families.
This area involves primarily rewards for employment anniversaries, rewards for retirement, support for
families on the occasion of a birth and paid parental leave.
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Occupational health and safety
In cooperation with leading specialists in the area of occupational health and safety in the Czech Republic,
the Company sets up and evaluates processes for improving the health and safety of all employees.
The Company uses RISCON software for analysing and assessing risks, keeping records of work-related
injuries, and keeping a catalogue of protective aids and hazardous chemical substances, and for keeping
records of legally mandated testing as well as planning and management of preventive medical care.
The number of employees able to work has remained high in the long term, whereas the injury rate has been
low over the long term.
Number of work-related injuries in 2011
year

number of work‑related injuries

2006

2

2007

0

2008

2

2009

0

2010

0

2011

3
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The Energy to Reduce
CO² Content in the Air
Permanent reduction of CO² emissions is
perceived by ŠKO‑ENERGO as a key task.
Already today, the state-of-the-art power
and heating plants reduce the burden on
the environment by roughly one-third in
comparison with traditional coal power
plants. By 2015 the Company will make
another huge step towards protection
of air quality. The Company’s goal is for
one-third of its output to come from
renewable resources and to decrease
CO² emissions from fossil fuels by an
additional hundreds of thousands of tons.
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The Energy to Reduce
CO² Content in the Air
Reduction of CO² emissions. We must take a huge
step or, more precisely, a leap ahead!

1/3 of the power
from renewable sources
produced will come from renewable
sources in 2015

272,000 tonnes
of CO²

is now the amount of annual savings of
ŠKO‑ENERGO as compared to ordinary
energy production by combustion of coal
and gas in other solid-fuel power plants
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In 2012, ŠKO-ENERGO plans to put into operation new feeding equipment that will supply also a
lower-quality biomass to the boilers.

The modern fluid boilers enjoy regular maintenance in the Company’s power and heating plant.
A general overhaul is conducted during the summer shutdown. Usually, a short shutdown and
technical review of the boilers is carried out in the autumn. Boilers have a broad spectrum of
fuel-combustion applications. Today, the Company obtains all of the supplied brown coal from the
North-Bohemian mines Severočeské Doly Bílina.
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The effort to reduce CO² emissions in the air is nothing new for ŠKO‑ENERGO. “Our company has been
continuously reducing CO² emissions,” says Miroslav Žďánský, the Company’s statutory representative for
the commercial-economic area. “We’ve been using biomass ever since 2005 and it’s still very efficient. The
annual reduction of emissions compared with ordinary power generation by combustion of coal and gas
amounts to about 50,000 tons of CO².”
The Company is currently carefully planning fundamental steps towards additional reductions of CO²
emissions. The year 2011 was influenced by preparations for the “new era”. “By implementing these
measures, by 2015 we will increase reductions by up to 130,000 tonnes, i.e. by one-quarter”, specifies
Miroslav Ždáňský. We want to achieve as much as 25 per cent of planned CO² emissions reductions
especially through co-combustion of biomass.”
As early as in 2005, the Company built a pneumatic boiler biomass feeding system at a cost of
CZK 33 million. The existing facility has a capacity of 40,000 tons of biomass a year. During 2012 a new
mechanical line for feeding biomass to the boiler will be completed. This will make it possible to combust
lower-quality biomass, which had previously caused technology-related problems. A total of CZK 50 million
was allocated for the project. “The biomass co-combustion capacity will thus be raised of 80,000 tonnes,”
explains Miroslav Žďánský, noting that the new facility will also make it possible to feed the boiler with solid
alternative fuels from municipal waste. “We have entered into a letter of intent for the supply of twenty
thousand tons of alternative solid fuels with Compag, which will build a new municipal-waste sorting line in
Mladá Boleslav with aid from the European Union.”
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Among other things, 2011 was thus a year of seeking out new sources and suppliers of biomass for
ŠKO‑ENERGO. In November, for example, initial trial combustion of high-quality pellets produced from
imported Ukrainian sunflower seeds was carried out at the ŠKO-ENERGO power and heating plants. A study
of the economic feasibility of cooperation with the Ukrainian partner and further fuel testing will continue in
2012.
Apart from biomass co-combustion, the Company is preparing further measures aimed at increasing the
efficiency of production and diminishing power-distribution losses, thus indirectly bringing about a further
reduction of emissions.
First on the list is the refurbishment of the Vrchlabí power and heating plants, where the steam-ducting
distribution system will be replaced by a hot-water system, and the hot-water boilers will be supplemented
with small co-generation units.
The hotwater mains system will be extended and critical points will be reinforced in Mladá Boleslav.
Reconditioning of turbines with the objective of increasing their efficiency by one percent is being planned.
For all of the above-mentioned projects (including biomass feeding), the Company is applying a free transfer
of emission allowances within the framework of derogations.
All monitored emission, i.e. not only CO² emissions, are kept at very low levels and far below the permitted
limits. Miroslav Žďánský is also optimistic with regard to the demands that the Company will face in 2015,
when new EU regulations on industrial emissions will come into force. “The technologies used in building the
heating plant in 2000 are still among the most up-to-date in the Czech Republic. Not only the fluid boilers,
but all other equipment as well, are kept in perfect working order by the heating-plant employees. Apart from
some minor adjustments of the equipment, we should in compliance with the new EU requirements without
any problems by 2015.”

25

26

ŠKO‑ENERGO

Annual Report 2011

Information on the Supervisory
and Statutory Bodies
Supervisory Board
Composition of the Supervisory Board as at 31 December 2011
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Michael Oeljeklaus (* 1963)
Member of the Board of Directors of ŠKODA AUTO, appointed to the position of chairman of the
Supervisory Board of ŠKO‑ENERGO on 1 January 2011.
Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Gert Wölfel (* 1939)
Advisor, appointed to the position of vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board of ŠKO‑ENERGO
on 1 January 2011.
Members of the Supervisory Board
Jaroslav Kužel (* 1952)
Head of the Department of Energy Sales, Operating Economics and Chemical Regimes of ČEZ, a. s.,
appointed to the position of member of the Supervisory Board of ŠKO‑ENERGO on 1 May 2010.
Karlheinz Emil Hell (* 1963)
Member of the Board of Directors of ŠKODA AUTO, appointed to the position of member of the Supervisory
Board of ŠKO‑ENERGO on 12 June 2010.
Raimund Wunder (* 1951)
Statutory representative of VW Kraftwerk GmbH, appointed to the position of member of the Supervisory
Board of ŠKO‑ENERGO on 1 January 2003.
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Statutory Representatives
Statutory Representatives of the Company as at 31 December 2011
Vladimír Handlík (* 1947)
Statutory Representative of the Company for the technical area, appointed to the
position on 30 June 1995.
Vladimír Handlík joined the company in 1995 after leaving his position as chief
power engineer at ŠKODA AUTO in Mladá Boleslav, to which he had connected his
entire professional life. He has participated in the ŠKO‑ENERGO project from the
very beginning and has played a very important role in its implementation.
He is a graduate of the Czech Technical University (CTU) in Prague, where he
specialised in the field of steam boilers and turbines. From 1977 to 1980 he
expanded his professional education through post-graduate study in the same
field at CTU.
Motto: “A strong team is the secret of success in the energy industry.”

Miroslav Žďánský (* 1958)
Statutory Representative of the Company for the commercial-economic area,
appointed to the position on 1 September 2000.
Miroslav Žďánský came to the Company from his position as director of a CzechAmerican firm engaged in the administration and development of privatised firms
and real estate, in which he served for five years. From 1989 to 1995 he worked
in management positions in the financial section at the Mladá Boleslav-based
carmaker.
He is a graduate of the Faculty of Chemical Engineering at the Institute of
Chemical Technology in Prague (ICT). In 1998 he completed his diploma work at
the European Business School (Private Wissenschaftliche Hochschule, Schloss
Reichartshausen am Rhein, Germany), where he received the title of Master of
International Management.
In 2010 he was awarded the title of Master of Business Administration (MBA)
at The Open University Business School, Milton Keynes (UK) and the European
Energy Manager certificate from the German Chamber of Commerce in
Nuremberg (FRG).
Motto: “Education is the path to success.”
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Corporate Social Responsibility
ŠKO‑ENERGO considers it very important to achieve a balance of the interests of all
shareholders. Honourable dealing, openness and transparent management practices
and proper supervision of the management form the foundation of the corporate
governance of ŠKO‑ENERGO.

Therefore, the Company applies, to the adequate extent corresponding to its legal form and structure, the
Code of Corporate Governance based on OECD principles of best practices and processes in management.
Important information on the Company’s ownership structure and statutory bodies and a description of their
current composition can be found on pages 10, 11 a 26 of this Annual Report.
Observance of shareholders’ rights, equal treatment of shareholders
ŠKO‑ENERGO takes into account all applicable provisions of the Commercial Code and the Company’s rules
of procedure relating to protection of shareholders’ rights. In particular, it provides all relevant information
regarding the Company without delay, convenes and conducts its general meetings and ensures equal
treatment of all shareholders.
Publication and transparency of essential information
The statutory representatives regularly inform—orally and in writing—the Supervisory Board of the
Company’s business situation and position. Important business matters are communicated immediately.
The statutory representatives inform the Supervisory Board in particular in the following respects:
→→Submission of the annual budget for the subsequent business year and draft plan for the medium term,
including investments.
→→Quarterly presentation of basic information on the Company’s assets and financial situation.
→→The statutory representatives prepare annual financial statements in compliance with the applicable Czech
legal regulations in the course of the statutory accounting period, no later than by the end of April of the
subsequent accounting period.
Responsibilities of the statutory representatives and the Supervisory Board
The statutory representatives manage the Company’s business affairs in accordance with the applicable
laws, memorandum of association, decisions of the general meeting and the Supervisory Board and the rules
of procedure. The rules of procedure, issued by the general meeting, stipulate what acts of the statutory
representatives are subject to prior approval of the general meeting or the Supervisory Board.
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The role of stakeholders in the Company’s corporate governance
Stakeholders include primarily employees, members of the local community, local businesses, schools,
suppliers and creditors.
Considerations regarding the impact of its decisions on various stakeholders are part of the decision-making
process of the Company’s management. The Company’s management respects and observes the rights
granted to stakeholders by the law.
Relations with employees
The Company considers its employees to be a key part of its business. The Company’s success depends
on, among other things, continual internal development and creation of positive working conditions for its
employees. The Company supports its employees’ involvement in the running of the Company and enables
them to express their concerns, if any, regarding any potential erroneous process which could lead to
a breach of laws and other standards.
Relations with business partners
In its relations with business partners, the Company exerts great effort to ensure for its key customers,
ŠKODA AUTO and the residents of Mladá Boleslav, reliable, safe and affordable supplies of energy. The
Company acts honourably towards all its suppliers—the fundamental aspects of selecting suppliers are
quality and price. The Company regularly and truthfully informs its creditors of its financial situation.
Relationship to the environment
As an energy firm, the Company is aware of its responsibility to protect the environment. Therefore, it
monitors and complies with legislation concerning the environment and restricts its emissions to levels
below the required limits.
Relations with members of the local community
Within the local community, the Company wants to be a good corporate citizen and is aware of its corporate
social responsibility, as is noted in the text below.
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Corporate Strategy
Mission
ŠKO‑ENERGO provides comprehensive care
for its biggest customer, ŠKODA AUTO, in
meeting its energy needs. The Company
concurrently ensures heat supplies and thus
comfort for the residents, businesses and
institutions of the city of Mladá Boleslav,
thereby ensuring good conditions for their
work and private lives.

Goals for owners and banking institutions
→→ Ensure the required profit, return on
investments and repayment of loans

Goals for customers
→→ Provide ŠKODA AUTO with favourably priced
supplies of energy and services
→→ Provide all customers with safe and reliable
supplies of energy
→→ Gain new customers in Mladá Boleslav and
increase sales of heat
→→ Offer residents and businesses in Mladá
Boleslav supplies of heat at prices below the
level of prices of heat from gas
→→ Enable connection to remote heating in new
areas of Mladá Boleslav
→→ Enhance the Company’s positive image among
customers

Goals for employees and the surrounding
community

Vision
ŠKO‑ENERGO is a competitive, coveted and
reliable energy supplier which responds in
a timely manner to the needs of the market,
invests appropriately, earns reasonable
profits and minimises harmful impacts on
the environment. The Company cares for its
employees and is a good citizen of the region
and partner of the city of Mladá Boleslav.

→→ Qualification, motivation and satisfaction of
employees
→→ Corporate culture supporting innovation and
teamwork
→→ The Company as a good and desirable employer
→→ Good relations with institutions and authorities
in the region
→→ Targeted application of the principles of
Corporate Social Responsibility

Environmental goals
→→ Protect the environment on the basis of the
Company’s own sense of responsibility and
initiative
→→ Minimise harm to the environment through the
use of new processes and ecological behaviour.
Use of modern technologies and standards in
the construction and operation of all facilities
if this is technically feasible and economically
acceptable
→→ Maintain a high standard in minimising
airborne-emissions
→→ Conduct an open dialogue with interest groups
and provide them with information serving for
the understanding of adopted goals and results
of environmental programmes
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Goals of management processes
Company
management

→→ Coordinate company processes, optimise the use of resources and control mechanisms
→→ Use process management and continually improve processes
→→ Proceed in accordance with the owners’ policy

Financial
management

→→ Ensure return on investments and comply with the stipulated financial goals through
effective cost management
→→ Manage the effective use of facilities for production of electricity and heat and coordinate
production with purchasing
→→ Manage the Company’s pricing policy in accordance with the regulator’s directives
→→ Effectively use financial resources within the framework of the VW concern

Quality control
and environmental
management

→→ Improve processes ensuring the quality of energy supplies and services agreed with
customers
→→ Assess the environmental impact of existing and new processes and facilities and adopt
such measures that limit ecological and safety risks
→→ Support employees’ responsibility for quality and the environment through training and
provision of information
→→ Regularly inspect compliance with policies and goals in the areas of quality and the
environment and the functionality of the Company’s integrated system of management

Human resources
management

→→ Ensure that all positions are occupied by qualified and motivated employees
→→ Increase the qualifications and development of employees for the purpose of long-term
enhancement of their abilities and gaining new knowledge and skills
→→ Improve communication, involve employees in management and increase their awareness
with the aim of sharing the Company’s vision and goals
→→ Support a creative and positive approach to new ideas and use appropriate motivational
tools for this purpose

Assets management

→→ Take care of entrusted facilities and maintain them in operable condition in order to ensure
safe and uninterrupted operation
→→ Invest in areas which ensure reduction of CO² emissions, reduction of costs, certainty of
operation and increased sales of heat

Risk management

→→ Qualify and quantify risks and have them continually updated and assessed by the
responsible persons
→→ Effectively use financial instruments to reduce exchange-rate risks and for sales and
purchasing of CO² emission allowances
→→ Ensure prices of purchased electricity and gas through appropriate derivatives on
commodities markets and reduce the risks of price volatility through diversification of risks
by gradual purchasing
→→ Cover operating risks with appropriate insurance

Innovation

→→ Monitor the media and changes in technologies, regulatory measures and development of
the market and in a timely manner provide information for decision-making pertaining to
possibilities for reducing CO² emissions and improving production of energy
→→ Assess possible innovations of processes and facilities, select the most suitable solutions
and resources for implementation
→→ Plan and implement innovations at the right time

Sales and marketing

→→ Actively seek out new connections in the city of Mladá Boleslav and increase sales of heat
→→ Support selected activities in the city of Mladá Boleslav
→→ Favourably sell electricity not consumed by ŠKODA AUTO for its production

Strategic purchasing

→→ Secure the certainty of supplies and prices of brown coal through long-term contracts
→→ Increase the amount of purchased biomass from existing and new customers
→→ Use the Company’s ownership structure for effective purchasing of electricity and gas

Production, services
and distribution

→→ Optimally use the facilities’ capacity and reduce the number of unplanned interruptions of
energy supplies
→→ Reduce the share of expensive fuels and increase the share of biomass in the fuel mix
→→ Ensure ecological operation

Informatics

→→ Use modern information technologies and systems
→→ Implement the concept based on SAP and Energis systems supplemented with a suitable
superstructure

Goals of main processes

Goals of supporting processes
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The Energy to Return
Water to Purity
Water from the ŠKODA AUTO body paint shop
contains metals, but it arrives at the reservoirs
free of any heavy metals. Wastewater from
mechanical metal processing is contaminated
with oils and emulsions. We are also able to
deal with such contamination. The reservoirs
with treated water from the rainwater
drainage system in the new part of the
ŠKODA AUTO complex are so ecologically
clean that we can raise fish in them. We are
able to return water to crystal clarity.
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The Energy to Return
Water to Purity
Water management is an important part of
the services that ŠKO‑ENERGO provides for
ŠKODA AUTO. We produce industrial water for the
carmaker and ensure purchasing and distribution of
drinking water. Of no less importance, however, we
treat wastewater resulting from the processes of
painting and mechanical processing of metals.
We perceive water as a precious natural bounty
which must be protected.

20% reduction
of wastewater produced

2 million m³
per year is transferred by gravitation
pipe to the Bradlec operational
water source
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Particularly the thorough separation of wastewater and construction of wastewater-treatment
stations (Z17A and Z25) including two reservoirs for purifying industrial and rainwater have
enabled a significant reduction of contaminants discharged into surface water.
Regular assessment of the status of distribution points and consumption of potable and
industrial water and intensive cooperation with specialised departments of ŠKODA AUTO in the
area of cooling water have brought about a substantial decrease in the consumption of potable
and industrial water and thus a 20% decrease in the production of wastewater.
In addition to the Company’s relentless effort to find new ways of making environmental
protection more effective, after fourteen years of operating wastewater-treatment facilities the
Company is aware of the importance of regular and thorough maintenance of the equipment,
which always fulfils the requirements of the best available technologies.
Significant events which took place in the Company’s water-management section in 2011 include
cleaning of the large-capacity wastewater tanks and removal of distillates from the Z25 station,
repair of the sediment compression pump in the Z17A station and refurbishment of the control
systems of both stations.
Refurbishment of the inlet pool, including installation of new, automatically cleared screens and
reconditioning of rainwater pumps, was carried out in the Z29 station.
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The story of a drop of water from the body paint shop
The drop travels from the body paint shop to the Z17A neutralisation station, where it undergoes a
treatment process using the technologies of ferrous-salts coagulation and alkaline metal agglutination.
Depending on its origin, the water is then discharged into either the public sewer or rainwater drainage
system. The drop, which played a role in paint-surface preparation, leaves with its remaining organic
impurities and heads for the municipal wastewater treatment plant, where it is subjected to biological
purification. The drop of water with a low content of organic substances and now free of heavy metals
passes through the Z29 reservoirs directly into the Zalužany water course.

The story of a drop of water from mechanical metal processing
The drop leaves the mechanical metal processing operation encased in used oils and emulsions. It heads
to the Z25 station where, after multistage pre-treatment, it is evaporated in a vacuum. The separated oil
is then used for generating energy in the heating plant’s fluid boilers (for more details, see the Energy to
Recycle Waste chapter).
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The story of a drop of water in the cooling circuit
A full range of measures have been undertaken to ensure the smallest possible chemical content. The
cooling-circuit systems were expanded with an additional TRASAR 3D automated chemical-dosing system,
which ensures control of the optimum chemical doses in the cooling circuits of the compressors. In the
two major cooling circuits, the heating plant and compressor station, the efficiency of treating cooling
water is thus significantly enhanced, with the result of significantly reduced consumption of chemicals. The
wastewater load was concurrently reduced and precisely maintaining effective chemical concentrations was
made possible.

The story of a drop of water from the rainwater drainage system in the new
part of the ŠKODA AUTO complex
Purification of water from the rainwater drainage system, which takes water away from the new part
of the factory complex especially in the case of torrential rains, is ensured by the Z29 station. The main
parts of this station are two reservoirs with a total volume of 19,000 m³ in which biological treatment and
homogenisation of discharged water is achieved through intensive airing of these reservoirs. Thus the water
provides life-giving oxygen necessary for life in the connected water course.
At the same time, the reservoirs serve as an emergency safeguard against contamination of the Zalužany
water course and, subsequently, the Klenice stream and Jizera River. Water in the reservoirs is so clean that
fish can live (and actually do live) in it.
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Business Environment
Economic conditions in the Czech Republic
Very divergent reports emerged in the economy in the course of 2011. At the beginning of the period, there
was mainly positive information indicating that the recent financial crisis had finally been brought under
control. However, the word “Greece” began to be often mentioned in all cases and the mood generally
became rather negative.
The indisputable need for bold austerity measures and dynamic reforms greatly influenced the behaviour of
ordinary citizens as well as economic entities.
Total gross domestic product grew by 1.7% in 2011 according to a preliminary estimate of the Czech
Statistical Office, though the rate of growth continually slowed in the course of the year.
Besides the aforementioned restriction of domestic consumption ensuing from the uncertain impact of
political measures on the citizenry and companies, a weakening of demand on the part of our largest trading
partner, Germany, also became apparent.
As in the previous year, in 2011 motor-vehicle manufacturing (21.2% growth) was the workhorse of the
national industrial sector. Conversely, the greatest decline was recorded in the production of computers and
electronic and optical devices (9.8% decline). Industrial production grew 6.9% year-on-year, which had an
impact on the unemployment rate, which fell to 6.5%.
The average inflation rate in 2011 was 1.9%, with the population incurring significantly higher costs of living
(natural gas, electricity, water and sewer) and food (e.g. bread, eggs, sugar and coffee).
Development of the exchange rate of the Czech koruna against the main world currencies was again
relatively volatile. The strongest values achieved by the Czech koruna were CZK 24.010/EUR 1 and
CZK 16.265/USD 1, whereas the koruna’s weakest levels were CZK 26.025/EUR 1 and CZK 20.100/USD 1.
Overall, the koruna depreciated in relation to both currencies (by 3.0% against EUR and by 6.3% against
USD).
The Czech National Bank is continuing to support the economy through low interest rates as the reasons
for leaving the rates at this level have persisted to the present. The two-week repo rate thus remains at the
level of 0.75%.

Development of commodity prices
The development of commodity prices on the global and European markets had a direct impact on the prices
of commodities in the Czech Republic. The first half of 2011 was affected by political conflicts in North
Africa and the Middle East. The conflict in Libya influenced the rise in oil prices and the prices of coal and
gas gradually increased. A significant price spike occurred after the disaster at the Fukushima nuclear power
plant in Japan and following Germany’s announcement that it would decommission seven blocks of its oldest
nuclear power plants.
The second half of 2011 was characterised by a slight decline in the prices of oil and overseas coal. In Europe
there was a gradual decline in commodity prices due in part to uncertainty regarding economic growth of
European countries in connection with the ongoing and deepening financial crisis in the eurozone countries.
The prices of electricity and gas fell to a historically very low level at the end of the year.
The European Union continues to play a leading role in the effort to prevent climate change and it can be
expected that the EU does not intend to back away from its policies, even though this area is currently
greatly overshadowed by the eurozone’s problems, thanks to which the price of CO² emission allowances
declined to the historically lowest level since 2008.
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Situation on the brown-coal market in the Czech Republic and its impacts
on the heating industry
The pressure to exceed limits on mining brown coal is increasing. Primarily Czech heating plants, which
operate hot-water networks, have declared a shortage of coal and have not concluded contracts for the
period after 2013. This poses an existential threat for some of these operations.
Three brown-coal mining companies operate in the Czech Republic—Severočeské doly, Sokolovská uhelná
and Czech Coal (formerly Mostecká uhelná). Sokolovská uhelná burns the greater part of its production in
its on power-plant boilers. In the case of Severočeské doly, its owner—ČEZ—consumes most of its output.
Therefore, coal from the Most region is critically important for the market.
Exceeding the mining limits could reverse this situation. However, this is not anticipated in the mediumterm horizon, as it could lead to the collapse of the current governing coalition. A completely new view of
exceeding the limits was brought forth at the end of March in a pronouncement by Prime Minister Petr
Nečas, who stated that although the government has undertaken to not exceed the limits, the truth is that
there are no grounds for these limits in Czech law. If an agreement is reached between mining companies
and landowners, then an administrative process would be started which could, though not necessarily would,
lead to the initiation of mining in the given area.

Development of the region
The region’s development is substantially influenced and stabilised by the success of ŠKODA AUTO
and its growth strategy. ŠKODA AUTO sold a record number of vehicles in 2011. The region has a low
unemployment rate and increasing purchasing power.
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The Energy to Recycle
Waste
The usage of fluid boilers to produce electricity
and heat provides a suitable technology to
incinerate some alternative fuels obtained
from waste. A case in point is an emulsion
obtained by evaporation of oil-contaminated
water. Planned future investments will also
allow combustion of solid alternative fuels
processed from waste created during vehicle
manufacture and from sorted municipal waste.

42

ŠKO‑ENERGO

Annual Report 2011

The Energy to Recycle
Waste
Something becomes waste when it becomes
useless. This is the philosophical approach of
ŠKO‑ENERGO with respect to waste management.

39,800 tonnes
out of 40,000 tonnes of ash is recycled

993.85 tonnes
of “ŠKO‑ENERGO Oil Emulsion“
fuel was burned in 2011
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Ash accounts for largest share of the volume of energy by-products (approx. 40,000 tonnes per year). “That
number may scare the layman,” admits Jiří Mach, Head of the Environment Department. “In reality, however,
except for a fraction of the coarsest fly ash that ends up in a landfill, nearly the entire volume of fly ash is
used as a building material suitable particularly for remediation of sites such as where sandstone mining took
place. Building materials containing fly ash are ideal for such use due their properties because they hold the
terrain very well and are sufficiently dense.”
Fly ash was certified in cooperation with specialised firms as a building material and thus the production of
waste within the Company was significantly reduced. This product is covered by new European Community
legislation on chemical substances, pursuant to EC Regulation No. 1907/2006, abbreviated as REACH. In
accordance with this legislation, the Company carried out registration within the ASVEP consortium as at
30 November 2010.

Three further steps of ŠKO‑ENERGO in the field of waste recycling
“ŠKO-ENERGO Oil Emulsion” is a concentrate of substances derived from wastewater treatment plants used
in the machine-engineering plants of ŠKODA AUTO. The Company holds a certificate for this emulsion issued
by the Běchovice Research Institute and the emulsion is used as a technical fuel. It is combusted together
with other fuels in one of the fluid-bed boilers, without any impact on the environment by the combustion
process.
Since 2007, the Company has sorted produced mixed waste, which comprises 14% of all waste in the
“other” category generated within the Company. This involves, for example, collection of used toner
cartridges, depleted batteries and used fluorescent lamps.
Since 2008, the Company has been involved in an electronic-waste recycling programme within the
“Green Company” project implemented by REMA. The programme is focused mainly on recycling computers
and related equipment. Individuals among the Company’s employees can participate in the project.
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Report of the Management
on Activities in 2011
Production and supplies of energies
Supplies of all energy in 2011 were continuous and in compliance with contracts and the requirements of
ŠKODA AUTO, CENTROTHERM and other contracting parties. There were no serious breakdowns or faults of
the boilers. With regard to environmental protection, no applicable laws or decrees were breached.
The growth of the volume of both production and purchasing of energy in 2011 was related particularly to
increased production at ŠKODA AUTO influenced by growing demand on the automotive market, as vehicle
production increased by 20%.
On the other hand, 2011 was marked by unusually temperatures. Average temperatures in the winter
months, with the exception of February, did not fall below freezing, which reduced annual heat sales by
10.2%. Significant growth in natural-gas sales was due to the inclusion of the branch plant in Kvasiny in the
acquisition portfolio of ŠKO‑ENERGO (+108.6%). Annual movements in energy consumption are summarised
below:
Volumes of supplies
unit

2011

2010

2011/2010 [%]

MWh ’000

567

548

3.4

– of which ŠKODA AUTO

MWh ’000

523

494

5.8

– of which supplies to mains

MWh ’000

44

54

(18.5)

MWh ’000

454

506

(10.2)

– of which ŠKODA AUTO

MWh ’000

293

319

(8.2)

– of which CENTROTHERM

MWh ’000

153

178

(14)

– of which other

MWh ’000

8

9

(11.1)

318,315

326,577

(2.5)

El. energy

Heat

Compressed air

m³ ’000

Natural gas

GWh

315

151

108.6

DEMI-water

m³ ’000

181

164

10.4

Potable water

m³ ’000

413

375

10.1

Industrial water

m³ ’000

319

382

(16.5)

Waste water

m³ ’000

1,289

1,250

3.1
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Economic results
Income statement
The Company focuses on achieving the lowest possible cost growth and stable profit. Fixed costs do not
show any growth from the long-term perspective, with the exception of personnel costs, where the result
of collective bargaining and wage increases are respected. The cost of raw materials and energy are rising
in line with developments in the market and the Company provides for increase thereof through the use of
standard tools. The economic results of the Company are dependent primarily on electricity and heat cogeneration. The results are then influenced by the consumption of heat, which is dependent on the weather.
Operating income amounts to CZK 2,704.4 million and compared to 2010 is higher by CZK 278.5 million,
representing an increase of 11.5%. Sales of electricity and natural gas experienced a particularly positive
upward trend. Conversely, the previously mentioned lower sales of heat had a negative impact. The main
reason for the rise in operating costs is the above-mentioned takeover of natural-gas purchasing for Kvasiny.
Prices of basic commodities and energy purchased (brown coal, electricity and natural gas) did not grow
significantly in 2011 and in some cases even declined. Considerable price increases were recorded only
in the state-regulated items of electricity. Total operating expenses in the amount of CZK 2,699.9 million
increased in comparison with 2010 by CZK 281.4 million, i.e. by 11.6%. The Company seeks to eliminate
the rise in prices of energy inputs in particular through further optimisation of the fuel mix, especially by
increasing the proportion of brown-coal combustion from 97.7% in 2010 to 98.7% in 2011. The Company’s
own production of electricity rose by 0.8%, to 490,718 MWh, compared to the previous year. The additional
purchase of electricity for ŠKODA AUTO in the amount of 198,830 MWh increased by 9.5% year-on-year
(due to increased vehicle production).
The Company has no significant influence on the annuity rents representing 25.7% of all expenditures.
Other operating expenses increased by CZK 73.5 million from CZK 620.4 to CZK 693.9 million, i.e. by 11.9%.
It was mainly due to increased repair costs and payroll expenditures, whose development is derived from
a collective bargaining agreement within ŠKODA AUTO.

Structure of operating costs

Structure of operating revenues

25.7%

30.0%

4.9%
Ostatní provozní náklady

Stlaený vzduch

Nájemné

Teplo

19.7%

Nakupované energie

Služby

Výrobní materiál a energie

Voda

10.0%
25.7%

53.3%

Elektina

3.2%
18.6%

8.9%

Production material and energy

Electricity

Services

Purchased energies/power

Gas

Heat

Rent

Water

Compressed air

Other operating expenses

Plyn
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Economic results
in czk ’000

2011

2010

difference

%

2,704,377

2,425,920

278,457

11.5

3,104

4,184

(1,080)

(25.8)

2,707,481

2,430,104

277,377

11.4

2,699,893

2,418,474

281,419

11.6

810,287

777,583

32,704

4.2

purchased energy

501,063

403,078

97,985

24.3

rent

694,609

617,432

77,177

12.5

other operating expenses

693,934

620,381

73,553

11.9

7,308

6,736

572

8.5

2,707,201

2,425,210

281,991

11.6

280

4,894

(4,614)

(94.3)

Tax (deferred)

1,890

(2,724)

4,614

(169.4)

Profit for the accounting period

2,170

2,170

0

0.0

Revenues
Operating revenues
Financial revenues
Total
Expenses
Operating expenses
– of which production materials and energy

Financial expenses
Total
Profit before tax

Development of the capital structure, financing
The total balance of assets as at 31 December 2011 increased from CZK 657.1 million to CZK 731.4 million.
The increase was mainly due to an increase in current assets.
Fixed assets slightly increased from CZK 283.4 million to CZK 287.5 million in comparison with the
previous year. This increase is commented in detail in the chapter Investments, technological innovation and
facilities management. The value of current assets increased from CZK 353.3 million at 31 December 2010
to CZK 416.8 million at 31 December 2011. This increase was mainly due to an increase in short-term
receivables in the category of prepayments and advances due to changes in Act No. 235/2004 Coll., on the
Value Added Tax. Optimisation of purchased inventory showed stabilisation of its value. Cash on the current
account and in hand amounted to CZK 10.1 million, which is sufficient to cover the short-term needs of the
Company.
The status of equity capital reached the value of CZK 58.8 million as at 31 December 2011. This amount
consists of the economic result, i.e. earnings in 2011, the Company’s share capital and statutory reserve
fund. The Company also created a social fund from its profits, a fund for future investment financing and
a fund to cover price risks. The Company’s financial needs are covered by a short-term loan provided by
partners. The value of these funds drawn contributed to the increase in current liabilities. The Company had
not drawn any bank loans as at 31 December 2011.
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Structure of the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2011

Inventories

Provisions

11.0%, CZK 80.7 million

1.8%, CZK 13.3 million

(2010: 12.1%, CZK 79.4 million)

(2010: 1.6%, CZK 10.5 million)

Receivables
44.6%, CZK 326.0 million

Accruals

(2010: 38.1%, CZK 250.0 million)

8.0%, CZK 58.2 million
(2010: 16.6%, CZK 109.0 million)

Accruals
3.7%, CZK27.1 million
(2009: 2.5%, CZK 19.1 million)

Current liabilities
82.2%, CZK 601.1 million

Financial assets

(2010: 73.0%, CZK 479.6 million)

1.4%, CZK10.1 million
(2010: 3.1%, CZK 20.4 million)

Shareholders’ capital / equity

Fixed Assets

8.0%, CZK 58.8 million

39.3%, CZK 287.5 million

(2010: 8.8%, CZK 58.0 million)

(2010: 43.1%, CZK 283.4 million)
Total assets
100 %, CZK 731.4 million
(2010: 100 %, CZK 657.1 million)

Total liabilities
100 %, CZK 731.4 million
(2010: 100 %, CZK 657.1 million)

Cash-Flow Statement
values in czk ’000

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

2011

23,882

Net cash flow from operating activities

(65,071)

Net cash flow from investing activities

(25,270

Net cash flow from financing activities

76,547

Net increase / decrease in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

(13,794)
10,088
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Investment, technological innovation and facilities management
In 2011 ŠKO‑ENERGO introduced into operation investments in the total value of CZK 30.5 million. This
primarily involved operating investments, investments focused on improving occupational safety and
operational reliability. Some investments were necessitated by a legislative amendment. A major investment
consisted in expansion of the hot-water network for the purpose of increasing heat supplies.
Heating plant
In the heating plant, the additional installation of an ash-sorter cooling system was carried out on the K80
fluid boiler, which significantly increased the performance of the boiler when burning brown coal exclusively.
The operation to remove coal dust from the coal bunkers by means of suction and its insertion in the coal
line was completed.
The large-screen monitors for monitoring and managing the operation of the heating plant were replaced.
Infrastructure—equipment for production of other types of energy and distribution
In 2011 investments were carried out in the area of infrastructure intended particularly for modernisation of
control systems for production of compressed air and demi-water and for wastewater treatment.
This particularly involved innovation of the SAIA control systems, which have been in operation for more than
sixteen years. At the station for pumping rainwater from ŠKODA AUTO (Z5), modernisation of equipment
focused on safety and emergency preparedness was carried out.
For the possibility of increased supplies of heat, a new heating main was constructed in the eastern
industrial zone. Important billing meters were replaced due to new legislation.

Structure of investments

7%
6%

Ostatní

13 %

Legislativa

Operational reliability

Rozšíení sítíModernisation, safety
Network expansion
Modernizace,
bezpenost
Legislative

39 %

35 %

Provozní jistota
Other
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Risk management
The Company has long been committed to identifying key risks and uses standard instruments (insurance,
maintenance system) and less standard means (such as long-term customer-supplier contracts on
pricing models, diversification of risk through gradual purchasing and financial derivatives) in order to
accomplish this.
Together with INIS s. r. o., ŠKO‑ENERGO updated its risk-management concept in 2011. The Company’s
position is relatively specific due to its unique connection with ŠKODA AUTO, which is one of the Company’s
co-owners and concurrently its main customer. The risk-management concept takes a comprehensive view of
risks to ensure that ŠKODA AUTO’s interests are sufficiently protected.
The risk-management system was formulated with respect to economic development and changes as well as
uncertainty in the energy sector and contains the basic parameters of the risk-management strategy, a map
and structured catalogue of risks and tools for managing key risks. Today, most risks are being managed and
the total annual exposure in the amount of CZK 1.5 billion is thus reduced to CZK 110 million.
In order to ensure high-quality risk management, individual risk owners are designated. These are people who
monitor the seriousness of the given risks and seek out and apply the appropriate tools for managing them.
These risk owners comprise a risk committee. A company risk manager was designated who manages and
coordinates the risk committee and reports significant risks to the Company’s management.
Market risks are the most significant current risks which the Company can partially manage. These include
volatility of gas and electricity prices, uncertain development of the prices of CO² emission allowances and
shortages of coal and growth of the prices thereof. Operating and process risks, which are reduced through
appropriate insurance, are also important.
Volatility of gas and electricity prices
The price of gas has been very volatile in recent years (though probably) only due to its dependence on
the oil price. Volatility is increased by military conflicts in extraction areas and by events such as the
decommissioning of nuclear power plants in Germany. Liberalisation enabled entry into the market by a large
number of traders. There is a full range of trading models. The market is fully liberalised and, in the case of
gas, enables the transfer of Russian gas all the way to end-customers.
The price of electricity is similarly very volatile. PXE prices are connected to the EEX price. Volatility is
increased by the threat of economic and financial crisis and is also subject to the same influences as the gas
price (see above). The capacity of cross-border transfers can be a complication in electricity trading. The use
of wind and solar power plants will increase the volatility of electricity prices.
ŠKO‑ENERGO gradually conducted tenders for electricity suppliers in 2011, 2012 and 2013. Here
the principle of gradual purchasing in individual tranches (max. 10 in a given year) was applied, which
substantially eliminated price volatility. The year 2011 is closed. For 2012, an amount corresponding to
anticipated consumption was purchased in tranches; for 2013, 60% of the contractual amount has been
purchased. ŠKO‑ENERGO can terminate purchasing with a tranche with a minimal amount. Supplies of
surplus electricity are sold to the grid for the spot price and there is a risk of negative prices in the summer
period.
In order to restrict these market risks, the Company uses appropriate trading models which enable gradual
purchasing of electricity and gas in individual tranches based on prices on the EEX exchange in Leipzig.
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Volatility of CO² emission allowances prices
ŠKO‑ENERGO does not have to purchase emission allowances through 2012 because its requirement is
lower than the free provided allocation. From 2013 the Company will have to purchase emission allowances
at auction. The purchased amount will depend on the use of the possibility of derogation and on the ability
to replace coal with biomass. The price of emission allowances is currently very difficult to predict.
For the purpose of limiting risks, ŠKO‑ENERGO is transferring saved emission allowances for combusting
biomass to 2013. The use of derogation and increasing the co-combustion of biomass will delay the
necessity of purchasing emission allowances until 2015. For the future, the Company is counting on gradual
purchasing and diversification of risks and the use of various types of trading (spot, forward, auction).
Increase of the prices of coal and shortage thereof
The coal supplier is Severočeské doly Bílina, which will have a near monopoly position in supplying sorted
coal. In light of the uncertain breach of mining limits and the anticipated shortage of brown coal in the Czech
Republic, pressure to raise prices can be expected. Furthermore, a possible breakdown in a mine or in the rail
network poses the threat of non-delivery of coal in the winter period.
The Company guards against this risk with a long-term contract on coal supplies with a pricing model.
Operating and process risks
Breakdowns of the heating plant caused by an operation error and possible damage to a third party are the
most significant operating risks.
Operating and process risks are reduced by incessant maintenance of the production facilities and
equipment, systematic training of personnel and their professional development.
Insurance is an important means of managing the Company’s operating risks. The Company has concluded
contracts on assets insurance and insurance against operational breakdowns. All of the Company’s assets
are insured against natural disasters. In the case of operational breakdowns resulting from damaged
equipment, the insurance companies pay additional costs arising due to the purchase of energy.
Reduction of operating risks is assured by the Company’s integrated management system.
In November 2008 the Company crowned its effort to harmonise its management with ISO 9000 (QMS)
and 14000 (EMS) standards with certification of the integrated management system (IMS) according to
these standards. The certification was conducted by the well-known certification firm TÜV SÜD Czech.
The Company received from this firm, which also verifies the Company’s declarations of greenhouse-gas
emissions, a certificate of exceptionality for the successful introduction and management of all three auditing
systems.
For reducing other operating risks, the Company employs the RISCON system for occupational safety
management, EISORGNET for monitoring, management and reporting in the environmental area, and
PALSTAT for management of metrology within the Company.
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Risks in the area of information technologies (IT)
In the area of information technologies, the Company focuses on measures against risks involving the
availability, confidentiality and integrity of data. The Company uses information systems and technologies
not only for administrative activities, but also for managing production facilities, in the operation of which
the maximum possible level of security is taken into account. The security of systems is regularly inspected
and improved in connection with technological development. The Company uses a central administration
application and antivirus protection. Technical measures for securing data networks are shared with
ŠKODA AUTO, which uses the best available technologies, and the Company is progressively applying all of
ŠKODA AUTO’s security standards. Despite the Company’s strong focus on IT security, these risks cannot
be completely eliminated because of the rapid development of information technologies and the rising global
trend of computer crime. The Company’s objective is to minimise the consequences of these factors through
the active use of the available technologies and improvement of company processes.
The most significant unmanageable risks
The risks over which the Company has no influence and cannot guard itself against are related to the
government’s tax policy, the amount of fees for renewable sources and subsidies to support energy from
renewable and alternative sources.
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The Company’s Strategy and Goals
for the Coming Period
In the current period marked by economic and legislative changes and uncertainties,
the primary task of an energy company’s management is to formulate an effective
business strategy. The Supervisory Board then assesses this strategy from the
perspective of the owners’ interests. The core pillars and objectives of this strategy
are low energy costs for customers, safety and reliability of supplies and ecological
conduct.
Anticipated development of the business environment
The long-term contractual relationships with ŠKODA AUTO and that firm’s growth guarantee a stable
economic environment for the Company and protects it against fluctuations of national economic influences
in the Czech Republic and in Europe as a whole. It is necessary to assess commodity prices from the global
perspective. According to the International Energy Agency, which published its forecast at the end of
2011, oil and gas prices will continue to rise and to have an impact on energy consumption and savings.
In connection with the anticipated long-term increase of the prices of CO² emission allowances, coal prices
should rise more slowly. Emphasis on saving energy will support further technological innovations in energy
production and consumption.
Legislative changes and the impact thereof on the Company
The Czech Republic is continuing in its implementation of European legislation. The Act on Supported Energy
Sources, which will come into force on 1 January 2013, is the implementation of Directive 2009/28/EC
on Supporting the Use of Energy from Renewable Sources. The reason for adopting this law is the Czech
Republic’s commitment to having a 13% share of renewable sources of energy by 2020 (determined from
gross domestic energy consumption).
The basis of the amount of aid for producing electricity from renewable sources of energy will be the
National Action Plan (NAP), which quantifies the proportion (limit) of individual renewable sources in achieving
the 13% share of renewable sources. The Ministry of Industry and Trade is preparing, evaluating and
updating NAP. The Energy Regulatory Office then determines the scope and amount of aid based on the
values set forth in NAP. This can be gradually adjusted for individual sources with regard to NAP. If the limits
are exceeded during the duration of NAP (i.e. during the period until 2020), it is possible to suspend aid for
the given renewable source (this should be valid for new sources introduced into operation upon exceeding
the limits set forth in NAP).
The provisions pursuant to which co-combustion of biomass in highly efficient co-generation, whose
conditions the Company already fulfils, are important for ŠKO‑ENERGO.
The purchase of CO² emission allowances for production of heat and electricity will be mandatory from 2013.
Carbon dioxide is one of the main greenhouse gases.
From 2016, reduced limits will be mandated by the European Union and emissions of discharged sulphur
dioxide (SO²) and nitrogen oxide (NOx) will be penalised when these limits are exceeded. Fortunately for the
Company, compliance with these limits valid from 2016 will be achievable with low investment expenditures
thanks to prudent investments in modern technologies. The rate of growth in commodity prices and the
development of technologies will depend on the government’s attitude toward global warming and it is
necessary to take various scenarios into consideration.
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Prepared projects
ŠKO‑ENERGO has focused on projects reducing CO² emissions, which also bring about energy savings. For
this purpose, the Company uses European Union grants in the form of derogations allowing aid for projects
involving the reduction of CO² emissions. Within this programme, the Ministry of Environment recognised
the Company for an investment in the amount of CZK 340 million, which will gradually be implemented in
the period from 2013 to 2016. This involves projects for increasing the volumes of combusted biomass,
expansion of hot-water networks, increasing the efficiency of turbines and refurbishing power generation for
the ŠKODA AUTO factory in Vrchlabí.
Reductions of CO² are anticipated in the amount of 60,000 tonnes per year, with cost savings of more
than CZK 50 million per year. The prepared project for co-combustion of biomass will enable the potential
co-combustion of fuel created by processing municipal waste.
Financial goals
The Company’s goal is to achieve adequate profits while supplying its customers with energy for favourable
prices. The basis of economical production will consist in ongoing and thorough inspection, cost management
and optimum use of the capacity of the heating-plant facilities.
Customer satisfaction
The Company will respond to current developments and supply ŠKODA AUTO with energy under the most
favourable conditions possible. One of the crucial goals is to provide consistent and uninterrupted supplies
of energy. The Company will strive to maintain the satisfaction of existing customers and to gain new ones
in the city of Mladá Boleslav. The basis of the communication strategy for customers consists in emphasising
the competitive advantages inherent in low energy costs, ecological production, the Company’s conduct and
its beneficence for the Mladá Boleslav region.
Strategic purchasing of raw materials and energy
In connection with the planned increase of the volume of co-combusted biomass, the Company’s goal is
to increase the volume of biomass from 20,000 tonnes in 2011 to 80,000 tonnes in 2015. In light of
the situation on the biomass market in the Czech Republic, this goal is the greatest challenge facing the
Company. The task will be to ensure access to alternative solid fuels produced from sorted municipal waste.
The Company will use the competitive environment for ensuring price-advantageous purchasing of raw
materials and energy both for its own production and for purchasing commodities for ŠKODA AUTO. This
primarily concerns electricity and gas, in the case of which the Company, together with its shareholders, will
seek out the most favourable means of purchasing.
Human resources development
The basis for achieving the Company’s goals in all areas is management of the employees’ productivity,
development and education of personnel and their creative and motivated approach to their work. Therefore,
emphasis will continue to be placed on development of the system of education and effective use of
invested financial resources. Employees will be offered courses in the areas of professional preparation,
language instruction, communication and presentation skills, and computer technology.
Development of information systems
In all activities, the Company will increasingly exploit the possibilities of modern information technologies as
a means of improving processes in all management, production and supporting processes. The foundation
for development of this area will be a concept based on the SAP system.
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The Energy to Support
the Region
ŠKO‑ENERGO has long strived to be a good
corporate citizen of the region and partner
of the city of Mladá Boleslav. “We will not
change the Company’s strategy in this area,”
emphasises Miroslav Žďánský, statutory
representative of the Company for the
commercial-economic area. “We will continue
to support events in Mladá Boleslav which
we have supported in the past and seek
out other opportunities when our support
would be meaningful. For example, we want
to focus more on support for children and
youths together with the Chance for Children
Foundation. And we are pleased that the
public appreciates our ecological activities.”
The Company has abundant energy and
willpower to support the region.

56

ŠKO‑ENERGO

Annual Report 2011

ŠKO‑ENERGO Has a Vision
for Supporting the Region
From its position as one of the largest industrial
enterprises in the region, ŠKO‑ENERGO
understands regional support as being necessary
and meaningful. The Company coordinates its
activities with the activities of its most important
strategic partner, ŠKODA AUTO, and works in close
cooperation with ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN in supporting
projects.

CZK 330,000
went toward equipping a classroom of the
Industrial School in Mladá Boleslav with
state-of-the-art computer technology

1st year
of successful cooperation with the Chance
for Children Foundation
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When selecting the projects that the Company supports, strong emphasis is placed on children and youths.
Young people are the future of the region—therefore, the Company endeavours to influence the possibilities
of their free-time activities while enabling them to receive better education and leading them toward
maximally ecological behaviour.
Thanks to the Company’s sponsorship contribution in the amount of CZK 330,000, a new classroom
equipped with state-of-the-art computer technology was opened at the Mladá Boleslav Industrial School in
October 2011
Unlike the classrooms opened in previous years, whose utilisation is focused primarily on ecology, this
classroom serves for a broader spectrum of activities. However, it is also closely connected with ecology, as
ŠKO‑ENERGO proceeds in its aid strategy from the assumption that education should bring people closer to
ecology. In addition, the Company would like to see these educated young people in the ranks of its future
employees.
ŠKO‑ENERGO’s statutory representative for the technical area, Vladimír Handlík stated: “We are an
engineering company; therefore, we decided to assist the industrial school, whose graduates are among
the people we seek as future employees. The power-generation industry is built on educated people. There
is nobody shovelling coal in heating plants today. The majority of our employees are graduates of industrial
schools who operate modern heating-plant equipment.”
In its endeavour to support the establishment of superbly equipped classrooms, ŠKO‑ENERGO does not
intend to relent in the future. The Company is motivated to achieve this objective by the satisfaction of
instructors and, primarily, the children and youths who use the classrooms established in previous years,
where they work on ecological projects.
The philosophy of ecological classrooms was depicted by the Company’s statutory representative for the
commercial-economic area, Miroslav Žďánský, on the occasion of opening the classroom at Josef Pekař
High School, which was the very first in a full range of ecological classrooms. “At the high school, people are
growing up who in future will probably manage institutions and companies in the region and therefore we
began supporting ecology here.”
The ecological classrooms (others have been established at, for example, the Home for Children and Youths
in Mladá Boleslav, the Secondary Vocational School and Secondary Vocational Training Centre in Jičínská
Street) served for educating young people in 2011.
“We do not have a long-term plan for supporting schools in our city,” adds Vladimír Handlík. “When we see
that our help is needed somewhere, then we help.”
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Support for the region in 2011 (selected events)
Premier-league football team and extra-league
ice-hockey team
→→The Company has long support the Mladá
Boleslav premier-league football team and
extra-league ice-hockey team in cooperation
with ŠKODA AUTO.
FK Mladá Boleslav President’s Cup
→→The sixth annual ŠKO‑ENERGO Cup children’s
football tournament “for the FK Mladá Boleslav
President’s Cup” took place in May 2011 and
was won by the team from the TJ Luštěnice club.
Basketball, floorball and cycling
→→Other sports clubs which the Company has
long supported include the Slovanka women’s
basketball team and the Billy Boy floorball team,
as well as cycling (including indoor spinning).
These sports enjoy enormous popularity in
the region and matches and competitions
are attended by an ever increasing number of
spectators. According to statistics, floorball is
one of the most popular leisure activities.

Championship Cup in floorball
→→The well-attended Championship Cup in floorball
took place at the ŠKO‑ENERGO arena in October
2011, bringing the world’s best floorball teams
to Mladá Boleslav. The tournament was won by
the SSV Helsinki team.
Classroom equipped with state-of-the-art
computer technology
→→The range of existing ecological classrooms
opened in recent years was expanded with
the addition of a classroom at the Industrial
School which is equipped with state-of-the-art
computer technology. The Company contributed
CZK 330,000 for its equipment.
Dance Away the Summer
→→2011 was the second year of support for the
LP Pik dance centre, which offers a range of
interesting activities for all age groups of children
and youths, special pre-schools, basic schools
and day-care centres. The successful Protančené
léto (Dance Away the Summer) suburban dance
camp was held in 2011. The camp culminated
with an open-house and a performance by the
participating children.
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Wheelchair for Jindra

Activities for children and youths

→→At the end of the year, the “Wheelchair for
Jindra” event began with the purpose of
providing assistance for Jindra, a mentally
disabled seventeen-year-old boy.

→→Mladá Boleslav is a large industrial city with
above-average incomes, which brings the risk of
drug abuse among young people. Therefore, the
Company considers it beneficial to contribute to
activities of children and youths which ensure the
sensible use of their free time.

Children’s Note
→→The Company supported the Dětská nota
(Children’s Note) song competition for children,
which celebrated its 34th anniversary in
November 2011.
Tennis League
→→Tennis lovers especially valued another year of
the ŠKO‑ENERGO Individuals’ Tennis League; the
2012 edition successfully began.
Chance for Children Foundation
→→The Company’s long-term cooperation with the
Chance for Children Foundation (formerly New
Chance) is continuing. The Company considers
this focus of regional support to be of crucial
importance and intends to expand it this year.

Crime on the Sázava Pacific Train
→→The Company became the general partner of the
newly staged retro-comedy Crime on the Sázava
Pacific Train at the Mladá Boleslav Municipal
Theatre, which premiered on 20 May 2011 and
since then has enjoyed rapturous ovations from
audiences.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of ŠKO-ENERGO, s. r. o.
We have audited the financial statements of ŠKO-ENERGO, s.r.o., identification number 61675938,
with registered office at Tř. Václava Klementa 869, Mladá Boleslav (“the Company”) for the year ended
31 December 2011 disclosed in the annual report on pages 63–88 and issued the opinion dated
2 April 2012 and disclosed on pages 64–65.

Report on the Annual Report
We have verified that the other information included in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2011 is consistent with the financial statements referred to above. The Statutory
Body is responsible for the accuracy of the annual report. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the consistency of the annual report with the financial statements based on our verification
procedures.

Auditor’s Responsibility
We conducted our verification procedures in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing
and the related application guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the verification procedures to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the other information included in the annual report which describes matters that are
also presented in the financial statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the relevant
financial statements. We believe that the verification procedures performed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the other information included in the annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2011 is consistent, in all material respects, with the financial statements.

Report on review of the Report on Relations
In addition we have also reviewed the accompanying report on relations between the Company and its
controlling party and between the Company and the other persons controlled by the same controlling
party for the year ended 31 December 2011 (the “Report”). The completeness and accuracy of the
Report is the responsibility of the Statutory Body of the Company. Our responsibility is to express our
opinion on the Report based on performed review.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., Kateřinská 40/466, 120 00 Prague 2, Czech Republic
T: +420 251 151 111, F:+420 251 156 111, www.pwc.com/cz
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., registered seat Kateřinská 40/466, 120 00 Prague 2, Czech Republic, Identification Number: 40765521, registered with the
Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Insert 3637, and in the Register of Audit Companies with the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech
Republic under Licence No 021.

Shareholders of ŠKO-ENERGO, s.r.o.
Independent auditor’s report

Report on review of the Report on Relations (continued)
Scope of Review
We conducted our review in accordance with Audit standard 56 of the Chamber of Auditors of
the Czech Republic. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain limited
assurance as to whether the Report is free of material factual misstatement. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of Company personnel, analytical procedures and examination, on a test basis,
of factual accuracy of data. A review therefore provides less assurance than an audit. We have not
performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying Report has not been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
requirements of Article 66a of the Commercial Code.
2 April 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o.
represented by

Václav Prýmek
Partner

Jitka Žaloudková
Statutory auditor, Licence No. 1802

Note
Our report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version of our report takes
precedence over the English version.

Independent Auditor’s Report
and the Financial Statements

Translation note
This version of the financial statements is a translation from the original, which was prepared in
the Czech language. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate
representation of the original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or
opinions, the Czech version of the financial statements takes precedence over this translation.

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of ŠKO-ENERGO, s. r. o.
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ŠKO-ENERGO, s.r.o., identification
number 61675938, with registered office at Tř. Václava Klementa 869, Mladá Boleslav
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2011, the income statement,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes, including
a summary of significant accounting policies (“the financial statements”).

Statutory Body’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Statutory Body is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Czech accounting legislation, and for such internal controls as
the Statutory Body determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors of the Czech Republic, International
Standards on Auditing and the related application guidance of the Chamber of Auditors
of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., Kateřinská 40/466, 120 00 Prague 2, Czech Republic
T: +420 251 151 111, F:+420 251 156 111, www.pwc.com/cz
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., registered seat Kateřinská 40/466, 120 00 Prague 2, Czech Republic, Identification Number: 40765521, registered with the
Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Insert 3637, and in the Register of Audit Companies with the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech
Republic under Licence No 021.

Shareholders of ŠKO-ENERGO, s.r.o.
Independent auditor’s report

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2011, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Czech accounting legislation.
2 April 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o.
represented by

Václav Prýmek
Partner

Jitka Žaloudková
Statutory auditor, Licence No. 1802

Note
Our report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version of our report takes
precedence over the English version.
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Balance sheet
(in thousand czech crowns)
31.12.2011
ref.
a

assets
b

gross
1

provision
2

TOTAL ASSETS

962,348

(230,918)

731,430

657,105

Fixed assets

442,866

(155,333)

287,533

283,453

Intangible fixed assets

31,452

(15,283)

16,169

13,631

1.

Software

13,520

(11,744)

1,776

4,111

2.

Other intangible fixed assets

14,940

(3,539)

11,401

7,277

3.

Intangible fixed assets in the course
of construction

2,992

–

2,992

2,243

Tangible fixed assets

411,414

(140,050)

271,364

269,822

1.

Constructions

127,740

(17,978)

109,762

100,863

2.

Equipment

272,561

(122,072)

150,489

158,629

3.

Tangible fixed assets in the course of
construction

8,944

–

8,944

10,330

4.

Advances paid for tangible fixed
assets

2,169

–

2,169

–

Current assets

492,337

(75,585)

416,752

353,294

Inventories

156,249

(75,585)

80,664

79,437

Raw materials

156,249

(75,585)

80,664

79,437

Long-term receivables

8,154

–

8,154

6,009

1.

Other receivables

4,309

–

4,309

4,054

2.

Deferred tax asset

3,845

–

3,845

1,955

Short-term receivables

317,846

–

317,846

243,966

1.

Trade receivables

217,624

–

217,624

208,898

2.

Taxes and state subsidies receivable

8,259

–

8,259

11,663

3.

Short-term advances paid

77,297

–

77,297

17,255

4.

Estimated receivables

1,430

–

1,430

222

5.

Other receivables

13,236

–

13,236

5,928

Financial assets

10,088

–

10,088

23,882

B.
B.

I.

B.

I.

B.

II.

B.

II.

C.
C.

I.

C.

I.

C.

II.

C.

II.

C.

III.

C.

III.

C.

IV.

C.

IV.

D.

I.

D.

I.

31.12.2010

1.

net
3

net
4

1.

Cash in hand

75

–

75

33

2.

Cash at bank

10,013

–

10,013

23,849

Prepayments and accrued income

27,145

–

27,145

20,358

2,857

–

2,857

3,823

24,288

–

24,288

16,535

1.

Prepaid expenses

2.

Accrued income

ref.
a

liabilities and equity
b
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

A.
A.

I.

A.

I.

A.

III.

A.

III.

A.

1.

B.

I.

B.

I.

B.

III.

B.

III.

C.

I.

C.

I.

58,754

58,037

Share capital

10,000

10,000

Share capital

10,000

10,000

Reserve fund and other reserves

46,584

45,867

1,094

1,094

45,490

44,773

2,170

2,170

Liabilities

614,515

490,051

Provisions

13,430

10,508

Other provisions

13,430

10,508

601,085

479,543

15,300

136,351

415,000

337,000

13,656

5,414

157,120

771

9

7

Accruals and deferred income

58,161

109,017

Accruals

58,161

109,017

Statutory and other reserves
Profit / (loss) for the current period (+/−)

Short-term liabilities
1.

Trade payables

2.

Liabilities to shareholders and co-ventures

3.

Taxes and state subsidies payable

4.

Estimated payables

5.

Other payables

1.

31.12.2010
7

Equity

2.

1.

31.12.2011
6

657,105

Legal reserve fund

B.
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Income statement
31 December 2011
(in thousand czech crowns)
accounting period
ref.
a

description
b

I.
A.
+

1.

B.
B.

1.
2.
+

C.
C.

Sales of goods

501,063

402,640

501,063

403,078

–

(438)

Sales of production

1,978,454

1,825,159

Sales of own products and services

1,978,454

1,825,159

Cost of sales

1,712,526

1,602,566

Raw materials and consumables

810,287

777,583

Services

902,239

824,983

Added value

265,928

222,155

Staff costs

186,498

166,983

133,749

119,876

45,315

40,874

1.

Wages and salaries

2.

Social security and health insurance costs

3.

Other social costs

7,434

6,233

Taxes and charges

22,614

2,187

Depreciation of fixed assets

32,114

29,246

Sale of fixed assets and raw materials

25,569

27,837

Sale of fixed assets

25,549

27,828

D.
E.
III.
III.

1.
2.

G.

Sale of raw materials

20

9

14,333

5,236

Other operating income

199,291

170,284

Other operating charges

230,745

209,178

Increase / (decrease) in operating provisions
IV.

H.
*

Operating result

IX.
L.
X.

4,484

7,446

Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives

–

770

Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives

1,404

34

Interest income

N.
XI.
O.

132

180

Interest expense

4,005

4,236

Other financial income

2,953

3,234

Other financial expense
*

Q.
Q.

2010
2

Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

II.
II.

2011
1

1.

1,880

2,466

Financial result

(4,204)

(2,552)

Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities

(1,890)

2,724

(1,890)

2,724

– deferred

**

Profit or loss on ordinary activities after taxation

2,170

2,170

***

Net profit for the financial period

2,170

2,170

***

Net profit before taxation

280

4,894
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Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Year ended 31 december 2011
(czk’000)

share
capital

legal
reserve
fund

statutory
and other
funds

retained
earnings

total

10,000

1,094

44,054

2,190

57,338

Contribution to other funds

–

–

719

(719)

–

Profit distribution paid

–

–

–

(1,471)

(1,471)

Net profit for 2010

–

–

–

2,170

2,170

10,000

1,094

44,773

2,170

58,037

Contribution to other funds

–

–

717

(717)

–

Profit distribution paid

–

–

–

(1,453)

(1,453)

Net profit for 2011

–

–

–

2,170

2,170

10,000

1,094

45,490

2,170

58,754

As at 1 January 2010

As at 31 December 2010

As at 31 december 2011
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Cash flow statement
Year ended 31 december 2011
(czk’000)
2011

2010

280

4,894

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit on ordinary activities before tax
A.1

Adjustments for non-cash movements:

A.1.1

Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets

32,114

29,246

A.1.2

Change in provisions

14,333

5,237

A.1.3

Profit from disposal of fixed assets

(4,669)

(5,296)

A.1.4

Net interest expense

3,873

4,056

A.1.5

Other non-cash movements

1,404

(736)

A*

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax, and changes
in current assets

47,335

37,401

A.2

Working capital changes:

A.2.1

Change in receivables, prepayments and accrued income

(82,998)

117,987

A.2.2

Change in short-term payable, accruals and deferred income

(12,898)

85,676

A.2.3

Change in inventories

(12,637)

3,465

A**

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax

(61,198)

244,529

A.3

Interest paid

(4,005)

(4,236)

A.4

Interest received

132

180

A***

Net cash flow from operating activities

(65,071)

240,473

(52,894)

(59,625)

27,624

40,167

(25,270)

(19,458)

78,000

(203,000)

Cash flows from investing activities
B.1

Acquisition of fixed assets

B.2

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

B***

Net cash flow from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

C.1

Change in long- and short-term liabilities

C.2

Changes in equity:

C.2.1

Profit distribution paid

(1,453)

(1,471)

C***

Net cash flow from financing activities

76,547

(204,471)

(13,794)

16,544

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

23,882

7,338

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

10,088

23,882

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 december 2011

1.

General information

1.1. Introductory information about the Company
ŠKO‑ENERGO, s. r. o. (“the Company”) was incorporated on 30 June 1995 under the file mark of section C,
insert 38550 and has its registered office at Mladá Boleslav 1, Tř. Václava Klementa 869, postal code
293 60. The Company’s primary business activities are according to the Articles of Incorporation especially
production and distribution of heat energy, production and sales of electricity, sales of gas, installation,
revision and testing of electrical, pressure, gas equipment etc. Identification number of the Company is
616 75 938.
The shared capital of CZK 10,000,000 was fully repaid.
Shareholders as at 31 december 2011:
shareholder

share (%)

E.ON Czech Holding AG, Munich (Germany)

21.0

ŠKODA AUTO a. s., Mladá Boleslav

44.5

ČEZ, a. s., Praha

12.0

VOLKSWAGEN KRAFTWERK GmbH, Wolfsburg (Germany)

22.5

Total

100.0

The Directors as at 31 december 2011:
name
Vladimír Handlík
Miroslav Žďánský

The members of the Supervisory Board as at 31 december 2011 were as follows:
name
Michael Oeljeklaus
Gert Wölfel

position
Chairman
Vice-Chairman

Jaroslav Kužel

Member

Karlheinz Emil Hell

Member

Raimund Wunder

Member

The Company’s management is functionally divided into technical and trade management. The trade
management is represented by the business Statutory Director. Besides the technical Statutory
Representative, the technical management is also represented by a manager of the area of infrastructure
and other energies and the heating plant operations manager.
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Accounting policies

2.1. Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
in the Czech Republic and have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for derivatives
which are shown at fair value.
2.2. Intangible fixed asset
All intangible assets with a useful life longer than one year and a unit cost more than CZK 60,000 are
treated as intangible fixed asset.
Purchased intangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with its
acquisition.
Intangible fixed assets are amortised applying the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:
intangible fixed asset

estimated useful life

Software

3–4 years

Other intangible fixed assets

5–8 years

A provision for impairment is created when the carrying value of an asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
Emission allowances are presented by the Company as other intangible fixed assets. Emission allowances
allocated to the Company by the National Allocation Plan are recorded to the account of other intangible
fixed assets and to the account taxes and state subsidies payable upon being credited to the Company in
the Register of Emission Allowances in the Czech Republic.
Emission allowances allocated to the Company free of charge are recorded at replacement cost.
The emission rights liability is released into other operating income in the same period when relating
expenses are incurred.
The consumption of emission allowances is recorded to other operating expenses annually as at the
balance sheet date on the basis of actual CO² emissions produced in the period.
The first-in-first-out method is applied for all disposals of emission allowances.
Sales of emission rights are recorded as other operating revenue and are stated at the selling price. At the
same time, their book value is disposed from assets.
A provision is created for the deficit in emission allowances to cover their consumption in the disclosed
period. A provision for diminution in value is created when the carrying value of emission allowances is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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2.3. Tangible fixed assets
All tangible assets with a useful life longer than one year and a unit cost of more than CZK 40,000 are
treated as tangible fixed assets.
Acquired tangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with its
acquisition.
Tangible fixed assets, except for land which is not depreciated, are depreciated applying the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Tangible fixed asset
Buildings and constructions

Estimated useful life
30–45 years

Plant, machinery and equipment

3–30 years

Motor vehicles

5–8 years

A provision for impairment is created when the carrying value of an asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
Repairs and maintenance expenditures of tangible fixed assets are expensed as incurred. Technical
improvements of fixed assets exceeding CZK 40,000 per item per year are capitalised.
Tangible fixed assets with useful lives longer than one year a unit cost less than CZK 40,000 are treated as
inventory and are expensed upon consumption.
2.4. Inventories
Purchased inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable amount. Cost includes all costs
related with its acquisition (mainly transport costs, customs duty, etc.). The weighted average cost method
is applied for all disposals.
For the purposes of calculation of provision to inventory, inventories of raw material have been divided
between the emergency inventory of spare parts held to secure uninterrupted operation of the fixed assets
under lease and other inventories.
The provision for the emergency inventory of spare parts is calculated as a percentage from the value
of these inventories at the end of each year over the fixed assets finance lease period. The value of the
emergency inventory of spare parts will thus decrease on a straight-line basis, and at the end of the finance
lease period, the impairment of inventories will be consistent with the decrease in value of the relevant
leased assets.
The provision for other inventories is created on the basis of an analysis of slow-moving and obsolete
inventories and individual evaluation of inventories.
2.5. Receivables
Receivables are stated at nominal value less a provision for doubtful amounts. A provision for doubtful
amounts is created on the basis of an ageing analysis and individual evaluation of the credit worthiness of
the customers.
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2.6. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, stamps and vouchers and cash in banks, including bank
overdrafts.
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that can be exchanged for a predictable amount
of cash and no significant changes of value over time are expected. Cash equivalents are, for example,
deposits with a maturity of less than 3 months from the date of acquisition and liquid debt securities
traded in public markets.
2.7. Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated and recorded at the exchange rate of
the Czech National Bank stipulated as the exchange rate valid on the day following the date of its
announcement by the Czech National Bank.
Cash, receivables and liabilities balances denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at the
exchange rate published by the Czech National Bank as at the balance sheet date. All exchange gains and
losses on cash, receivables and liabilities balances are recorded in the income statement.
2.8. Derivative financial instruments
The overall strategy of risk management of the Company concentrates on unpredictability of financial
markets and the main aim is to minimize its potential negative impacts on financial results of the Company.
The Company uses financial derivative instruments – currency forwards as hedging against foreign currency
instability risks. The Company does not carry any speculative transactions.
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. Fair value of forward currency agreements is calculated as discounted value
of estimated future cash flows. The Company uses fair value stated by a bank for determination of fair
value.
All derivatives are presented in other receivables or in other payables when their fair value is positive or
negative, respectively.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are included in gain or loss on revaluation of
securities and derivatives.
2.9. Revenue recognition
Sales are recognised upon the performance of services and upon the dispatch of goods and the transfer of
their ownership to the customer and are stated net of discounts and Value Added Tax.
2.10. Leases
The costs of assets held under both finance and operating leases are not capitalised as fixed assets. Lease
payments are expensed evenly over the life of the lease. Future lease payments not yet due are disclosed
in the notes but not recognised in the balance sheet.
On the basis of the operating lease contracts concluded by the Company, the Company was provided
with cars, equipment and premises by ŠKODA AUTO a. s. and on the basis of the finance lease contract, it
was provided with all fixed assets of ŠKO ENERGO FIN, s. r. o. (hereinafter “ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN”). The lease
contracts and the finance lease contracts do not result, in the case of the Company, in the capitalisation of
the leased assets; the relevant lease payments therefore influence the profit / (loss) for the current period.
Any assets under finance lease shall be purchased after the termination of the lease contract.
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2.11. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
2.12. Employment benefits
The Company recognises a provision relating to untaken holidays.
The Company recognises a provision relating to rewards and bonuses of employees. The Company takes
into account an expected annual average ratio of payments for social and health insurance and payroll
expenses when creating the estimated payable.
Regular contributions are made to the state to fund the national pension plan. The Company also provides
contributions to defined contribution plans operated by independent pension funds.
2.13. Interest costs
Interest costs on borrowings to finance the acquisition of intangible and tangible fixed assets are
capitalised during the period of completion and preparation of the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed. Other interest costs are expensed.
2.14. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability
in the balance sheet and its tax base. Deferred tax asset is recognised if it is probable that sufficient future
taxable profit will be available against which the asset can be utilised.
2.15. Related parties
The Company’s related parties are considered to be the following:
→→parties, of which the Company is a subsidiary or an associate, directly or indirectly, and other subsidiaries
of these parties; and/or
→→members of the Company’s or parent company’s statutory and supervisory bodies and management and
parties close to such members, including entities in which they have a controlling or significant influence,
→→companies, which are associates of either the parties, of which the Company is subsidiary, directly or
indirectly; or the companies which are subsidiaries of the parties of which the Company is subsidiary.
Material transactions and outstanding balances with related parties are disclosed in Note 14.
2.16. Cash flow statement
The Company has prepared a cash flow statement using the indirect method.
2.17. Subsequent events
The effects of events, which occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation of
the financial statements, are recognised in the financial statements in the case that these events provide
further evidence of conditions that existed as at the balance sheet date.
Where significant events occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the preparation of the
financial statements, which are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date,
the effects of these events are disclosed, but are not themselves recognised in the financial statements.
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Intangible and tangible fixed assets
1 january
2011

additions /
transfers

disposals

31 december
2011

Software

13,520

–

–

13,520

Other intangible fixed assets

10,760

197,708

(193,528)

14,940

Intangible fixed assets in the
course of construction

2,243

749

–

2,992

Buildings and constructions

114,641

13,099

–

127,740

Equipment

255,178

17,383

–

272,561

10,330

(1,386)

–

8,944

–

2,169

–

2,169

406,672

229,722

(193,528)

442,866

Software

9,409

2,335

–

11,744

Other intangible fixed assets

3,483

56

–

3,539

Buildings and constructions

13,778

4,200

–

17,978

Equipment

96,549

25,523

–

122,072

Total

123,219

32,114

–

155,333

Net book value

283,453

(czk’000)
Cost

Tangible fixed assets in the course
of construction
Advance payments for tangible
fixed assets
Total
Accumulated amortisation/
depreciation

287,533
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1 january
2011

additions /
transfers

disposals

31 december
2011

Software

8,134

5,386

–

13,520

Other intangible fixed assets

5,790

197,565

(192,595)

10,760

Intangible fixed assets in the
course of construction

4,669

(2,426)

–

2,243

Buildings and constructions

107,643

6,998

–

114,641

Equipment

227,437

28,643

(902)

255,178

11,839

(1,509)

–

10,330

365,512

234,657

(193,497)

406,672

Software

6,925

2,484

–

9,409

Other intangible fixed assets

3,428

55

–

3,483

Buildings and constructions

9,921

3,857

–

13,778

Equipment

74,602

22,849

(902)

96,549

Total

94,876

29,245

(902)

123,219

(czk’000)
Cost

Tangible fixed assets in the course
of construction
Total
Accumulated amortisation/
depreciation

Net book value

270,636

283,453

As at 31 december 2011 the item Other intangible fixed assets included emission allowances in the
amount of CZK 11,357,000 (as at 31 December 2010: CZK 7,177,000).
The Company uses assets under finance lease contracts that are recorded as tangible fixed assets in the
financial statements after the expiration of the lease and after the ownership transfer.
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The lease instalments relating to existing contracts can be analysed as follows:
(czk’000)

31 december 2011

31 december 2010

8,428,200

7,813,202

685,029

614,998

4,198,794

4,764,823

13,312,023,

13,193,023

Amounts paid on existing finance lease contracts
Outstanding amounts payable within one year
Amounts payable after more than one year
Amounts paid and payable from existing contracts

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, no assets acquired upon the expiration of leases were recognised in
the balance sheet.

4.

Inventories

(czk’000)

31 december 2011

31 december 2010

Raw materials

156,249

143,612

Provision

(75,585)

(64,175)

80,664

79,437

2011

2010

Opening balance as at 1 January

64,175

57,349

Charge for the year

11,410

6,826

75,585

64,175

31 december 2011

31 december 2010

Trade receivables – current

217,624

208,898

Total trade receivables

217,624

208,898

Other receivables – current

100,222

35,068

Total other receivables

100,222

35,068

Net book value of short-term receivables

317,846

243,966

Net book value

The change in the provision for inventories can be analysed as follows:
(czk’000)

Closing balance as at 31 December

5.

Receivables

(czk’000)

Long-term receivables – current

4,054

Deferred tax receivable

3,845

1,955

Total long-term receivables

8,154

6,009

326,000

249,975

Total net book value of receivables

Unsettled receivables have not been secured and none of them are due after more than 5 years.
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Other receivables include mainly advance payments in the amount of CZK 77,297,000 (as at
31 December 2010: CZK 17,255,000) and Value Added Tax receivable in the amount of CZK 7,233,000
(as at 31 December 2010: CZK 11,364,000).
Significant increase of advance payments resulted from timing shift in netting of advance payments and
received invoices due to legislative changes regarding Value Added Tax.
Long-term receivables are represented by loans to employees amounting to CZK 4,309,000
(as at 31 December 2010: CZK 4,033,000).

6.

Equity

The legal reserve fund is created from the profit of the Company according to law and may not be
distributed to shareholders, but may be used to offset losses only. In compliance with the relevant
provisions of the Commercial Code, the Company contributes 5% of its annual net profit to the legal reserve
fund until the balance of this reserve reaches 10% of the share capital. The legal reserve fund reached 10%
of the share capital in 2004.
The general meeting of the shareholders approved the financial statements for 2010 and decided about the
allocation of profit earned in 2010 of CZK 2,170,000 on 12 May 2011.
Allocation of the net profit of CZK 2,170,000 for 2011 has not been approved by the date of preparation
of the financial statements.

7.

Provisions

(czk’000)
Opening balance as at 1 January 2010
Charge for the year

other provisions
12,097
8,549

Used in the year

(10,138)

Closing balance as at 31 December 2010

10,508

Charge for the year

11,861

Used in the year

(8,939)

Closing balance as at 31 December 2011

13,430

Other provisions include mainly provisions for employees’ bonuses and outstanding components of wages
and salaries relating to 2011.
Corporate income tax and deferred tax calculation is disclosed in Note 11.
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Liabilities and accruals

(czk’000)

31 december 2011

31 december 2010

Trade payables – current

15,300

136,351

Total trade payables

15,300

136,351

Liabilities to shareholders – current

415,000

337,000

Other payables – current

170,785

6,192

Total other payables

585,785

343,192

Total short-term liabilities

601,085

479,543

Trade payables have not been secured against any assets of the Company and are not due after more than
5 years.
Liabilities to related parties and accruals are disclosed in Note 14.
Significant decrease of trade payables and increase of accruals resulted from legislative changes in Value
Added Tax.
The Company does not have any overdue payables related to social or health insurance or any other
overdue payables to tax authorities or other state institutions.
Accrued expenses of CZK 54,337,000 as at 31 December 2011 (as at 31 December 2010 accrued income
of CZK 16,150,000) are represented by the annual settlement of the rental charge under the contract on
financial leasing of fixed assets to ŠKO‑ENERGO. Accrued expenses as at 31 December 2010 included also
credit note of CZK 78,299,000 for the final settlement of services provided to the Company’s shareholder
(as at 31 December 2011 accrued income of CZK 23,900,000).

9.

Bank loans and other borrowings

Credit line of CZK 20,000,000 has been provided by UniCredit Bank Czech Republic a. s. (as at 31 December
2010: CZK 20,000,000) to the Company to finance current assets.
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company has not drawn the credit line.
The bank consortium consisting of Commerzbank AG, Prague office, as the head of the group, and UniCredit
Bank Czech Republic a. s. as a group partner provided to ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN a loan agreement amounting to
DEM 220,000,000 (EUR 112,483,000). The purpose of the loan is to finance the construction of heating
plant and other infrastructure facilities, held by the Company under finance lease with ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN,
and to provide operating loans to the Company and to ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN.
Besides ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN, the loan is also guaranteed by the Company and by the shareholders of
ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN.
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To secure the claims of the bank resulting from the loan agreements, the Company assigns to the banks
in compliance with Section 554 of the Civil Code all its current and future receivables and other rights
ensuing from the contractual relationships of the Company. For the guarantee purposes, in compliance
with Section 553 of the Civil Code, the Company assigns to the bank its ownership to all its existing coal
supplies and to the coal supplies to which the Company acquires an ownership right by 30 June 2015 or
until the termination of the contractual relationship. Besides the above, the Company pledges to the banks
its receivable from UniCredit Bank Czech Republic a. s. relating to the payment of the balances from the
operating funds account and from the transfer account, and its requirement from Komerční banka, a. s. to
pay balances from the accounts.
Company uses credit line of CZK 550,000,000, provided by the company Volkswagen International Finance
NV. Based on the conditions stated in the contract from 1 October 2010, the Company can choose
between fixed and variable interest rate. As at 31 December 2011 the Company has drawn the loan
amounting to CZK 415,000,000 with interest rate 1.075% p.a. (as at 31 December 2010 loan amounting
to CZK 337,000,000 with interest rate 1.375% p.a.).

10. Derivative financial instruments
Financial derivative instruments are recorded as trading financial derivative instruments.
Fair value of financial derivative instruments is presented in Other receivables:
31 december 2011
fair value
(czk’000)

positive

negative

31 december 2010
nominal
amount

reálná hodnota
positive

negative

nominal
amount

Currency forwards

19

91

3,517

1,367

34

48,099

Total trading
agreements

19

91

3,517

1,367

34

48,099

Changes in fair value of trading derivatives are recorded in the Income Statement.
Certain derivative transactions, although providing effective economic hedges under the Company’s risk
management positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting under Czech accounting rules. Therefore, they
are presented above as trading derivatives.
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11. Income tax
The income tax expense can be analysed as follows:
(czk’000)

2011

2010

Deferred tax income / expense

(1,890)

2,724

Total income tax

(1,890)

2,724

31 december 2011

31 december 2010

280

4,894

Tax-non deductible expenses

41,659

12,534

Difference between tax and accounting depreciation

(9,891)

(13,748)

(45)

(55)

(32,003)

(3,625)

Tax base

–

–

Corporate income tax at 19%

–

–

Current tax can be analysed as follows:
(czk’000)
Net profit before taxation

Non-taxable income
Utilised investment relief

The deferred tax was calculated at 19% (the rate enacted for 2010 and subsequent years).
Deferred tax asset can be analysed as follows:
(czk’000)

31 december 2011

31 december 2010

2,551

1,997

(16,109)

(14,230)

3,042

1,995

Provision to inventories

14,361

12,193

Net deferred tax asset

3,845

1,955

Provisions
Difference between the accounting and tax net book value of
fixed assets
Unrealised 10% investment relief for acquired fixed assets
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12. Revenue analysis
Revenue from operating activities can be analysed as follows:
(czk’000)

2011

2010

1,069,533

908,252

Heat

475,541

521,238

Compressed air

118,506

110,826

Technical gases and services related to energy supplies

244,616

216,524

Water

65,852

64,630

Other

4,406

3,689

1,978,454

1,825,159

268,552

271,578

5,219

5,110

14,114

12,005

Gas

213,178

113,947

Total sales of goods

501,063

402,640

2,479,517

2,227,799

Electric energy

Total sales of own products and services
Electric energy
Heat
Drinking water

Total revenue from operating activities

All revenues in 2011 and 2010 were realized on domestic market.

83

84

ŠKO‑ENERGO

Annual Report 2011

13. Employees
2011

2010

4

4

Average number of other staff

239

247

Total number of employees

243

251

Members of management

The Company’s management includes two Statutory Directors, the Head of Infrastructure and Other
Energies and the Head of the Heating Plant Operations.
(czk’000)

management

other staff

total

Wages and salaries

9,999

123,750

133,749

Social security costs

3,399

41,916

45,315

Other social costs

1,842

5,592

7,434

15,240

171,258

186,498

Wages and salaries

9,394

110,482

119,876

Social security costs

2,178

38,696

40,874

Other social costs

1,560

4,673

6,233

13,132

153,851

166,983

2011

Total staff costs
2010

Total staff costs

Other transactions with the Company’s management are described in Note 14.
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14. Related party transactions
The Company was involved in the following related party transactions:
(czk’000)

2011

2010

2,183,282

1,893,135

ČEZ Prodej, s. r. o.

40,939

54,502

ČEZ Distribuce, a. s.

91,906

111,221

384

376

2,316,511

2,059,234

684,904

617,432

8,058

7,985

ČEZ Prodej, s. r. o.

452,380

429,176

ČEZ Distribuce, a. s.

202,707

120,498

–

141,546

76,184

–

–

19,369

1,424,233

1,194,460

Revenues
ŠKODA AUTO a. s.

ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN, s. r. o.
Total revenues
Costs
ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN, s. r. o.
ŠKODA AUTO a. s.

RWE Energie, a. s.
Pragoplyn, a. s.
E.ON Energie, a. s.
Total costs
These transactions were realized under standard market conditions.
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The following related party balances were outstanding as at:
(czk’000)

31 december 2011

31 december 2010

ŠKODA AUTO a. s.

130,096

132,223

ČEZ Prodej, s. r. o.

8,632

11,042

26,169

7,995

461

450

–

880

–

16,171

24,024

–

189,382

168,761

ŠKODA AUTO a. s.

–

14,906

ČEZ Prodej, s. r. o.

–

18,919

ČEZ Distribuce, a. s.

–

10,430

E.ON Energie, a. s.

–

2,196

415,000

337,000

ŠKODA AUTO a. s.

20,505

79,158

ČEZ Prodej, s. r. o.

39,515

–

ČEZ Distribuce, a. s.

18,236

–

4,895

–

54,337

–

552,488

462,609

Receivables
– trade receivables

ČEZ Distribuce, a. s.
ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN, s. r. o.
– other receivables
ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN, s. r. o.
– prepayments, accrued income and estimated receivables
ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN, s. r. o.
ŠKODA AUTO a. s.
Total receivables and accruals
Liabilities
– trade payables

– other liabilities to shareholders
Volkswagen International Finance NV
– accruals, deferred income and estimated payables

Pragoplyn, a. s.
ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN, s. r. o.
Total liabilities and accruals

Significant decrease of trade payables and increase of accruals resulted from legislative changes in Value
added tax.
The loans payable bear interest at market interest rates.
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During 2011 and 2010 the Company paid dividends to its shareholders in the following amount:
(czk’000)

2011

2010

ŠKODA AUTO a. s.

647

500

Volkswagen Kraftwerk GmbH

327

177

E.ON Czech Holding AG

305

309

ČEZ, a. s.

174

177

–

308

1,453

1,471

RWE Power Aktiengesellschaft
Total

The Company gives the management the possibility to conclude a life insurance to secure themselves
in old age.
No remuneration was paid to the members of the Supervisory Board for their activities in 2011 and 2010,
nor did they receive any guarantees, loans or other advantages.

15. Commitments
As at 31 December 2011 the Company has concluded contracts for capital expenditures in the total
amount of CZK 2,424,000 (as at 31 December 2010: CZK 5,472,000). The Company had no material
capital commitments other than the above mentioned and future commitments resulting from the finance
lease (see Note 3).

16. Contingent liabilities
The management of the Company is not aware of any significant unrecorded contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2011 and 2010.
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17. Fees paid and payable to the audit company
The total fees paid and payable for services performed by the audit company
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s. r. o.:
(czk’000)

2011

2010

Statutory audit of financial statements

995

995

Total fees paid and payable to the audit company

995

995

18. Subsequent events
No events have occurred subsequent to year-end that would have a material impact on the financial
statements as at 31 December 2011.
2 April 2012

Miroslav Žďánský
Statutory Director

Milena Vávrová
Chief Accountant

Vladimír Handlík
Statutory Director
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Report on Relations between Related Parties
Report on Relations between ŠKO‑ENERGO, s. r. o. as the Controlled Entity and
its parent companies as the Controlling Entities, and other entities controlled
by them, in the financial year commencing on 1 January 2011 and ending on
31 December 2011.

This Report on Relations between Related Parties concerning the following companies was drawn up
pursuant to section 66a(9) of the Commercial Code no. 513/1991 Collection of Laws („CC”):
VOLKSWAGEN Aktiengesellschaft (Germany), through holdings in ŠKODA AUTO a. s., Mladá Boleslav
and Volkswagen Kraftwerk GmbH (Germany)
E.ON ENERGIE AG (Germany), through holdings in E.ON Czech Holding AG (Germany)
ČEZ, a. s., Prague
(hereinafter the “Controlling Entities” or “Related Entities”) as the controlling entities, and
ŠKO‑ENERGO, s. r. o. Mladá Boleslav (hereinafter the “Controlled Entity” or “Related Entity”) as the
controlled entity, and concerning the Controlled Entity and other entities controlled by the Controlling
Entities (hereinafter also the “Related Entities”) in the financial year commencing on 1 January 2011 and
ending on 31 December 2011 (hereinafter the “financial year”).
Pursuant to the relevant legislation (s.§66a and s.66b of Act no. 513/1991 Coll., as amended), all
members shall be deemed the Controlling Entities so long as they act in concert, such as in the case of
ŠKO‑ENERGO, s. r. o.
This report was drawn up in order to comply with the information duty pursuant to section 66a (9) of the
Commercial Code no. 513/1991 Coll., as amended.
The Controlling Entities held the following shares in the Controlled Entity:
shareholder

share in %

contribution in czk ’000

ŠKODA AUTO a. s., Mladá Boleslav

44.5

4 450

E.ON Czech Holding AG (Germany)

21

2 100

ČEZ, a. s., Prague

12

1 200

22.5

2 250

Volkswagen Kraftwerk GmbH (Germany)

The distribution of the votes of the shareholders is described in the Memorandum of Association as follows:
“Each CZK 1,000 of the contribution of a shareholder equals a vote.”
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The following contracts were executed, measures taken and other legal acts performed by and among the
Related Entities pursuant to section 66a(9) of the Commercial Code no. 513/1991 Coll., in the financial
year:

Contracts Executed
In the financial year, following contracts were executed by and between the Controlled Entity and the
Controlling Entities, and by and between the Controlled Entity and any other entities controlled by the
Controlling Entities:
Purchase of goods and services
ŠKODA AUTO a. s.
ČEZ Prodej, s. r. o.

Sale goods and services
ŠKODA AUTO a. s.

Financial services
VW International Finance NV

Other Legal Actions
No legal actions were performed in the financial year to the benefit of the Controlling Entities, and/or the
Controlled Entities by the Controlling Entities, over and above any regular legal acts performed by the
Controlling Entities while exercising their rights of the members of the Controlled Entity.

Other Measures, Benefits and Disadvantages
No other measures were adopted or taken in the financial year in the interest of or inspired by the
Controlling Entities, and/or any other entities controlled by the Controlling Entities, by the Controlled Entity,
over and above any regular measures taken by the Controlled Entity in relation to the Controlling Entities in
their capacity of the shareholders of the Controlled Entity.

Considerations Paid and Received
No considerations were paid or received in the financial year in the interest of or inspired by the Controlling
Entities, and/or other entities controlled by the Controlling Entities, by the Controlled Entity, over and above
any regular considerations paid or received by the Controlled Entity in relation to its Controlling Entities in
their capacity of the shareholders of the Controlled Entity.
The overall value of any transactions involving Related Entities in the financial year is disclosed in the
Note 13 in the notes to financial statements.
The Controlled Entity did not incur any loss or damage due to the execution of any contracts, any other
legal actions, and other measures or considerations paid or received.
Mladá Boleslav, on 30 March 2012.

Miroslav Žďánský
Statutory Representative

Vladimír Handlík
Statutory Representative
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Abbreviations used
ŠKO-ENERGO or Company
ŠKO-ENERGO FIN
ŠKODA AUTO
CENTROTHERM
OECD
ZP
ČEZ
EU
ASVEP
REACH
PXE
EEX
NAP
OZE
MPO

ŠKO‑ENERGO, s. r. o.
ŠKO‑ENERGO FIN, s. r. o.
ŠKODA AUTO a. s.
CENTROTHERM Mladá Boleslav, a. s.
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
natural gas
ČEZ a. s.
European Union
Asociation for Energy Products Use
Registration, Evaluation and authorisation of Chemical substances
Power Exchange Central Europe
European Energy Exchange
National allocation plan
Renewable energy
Ministry of Industry and Trade of the Czech Republic
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